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Hainan Meilan International Airport Company Limited

A joint stock company incorporated in the People’s Republic of China with limited liability
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
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www.mlairport.com www.mlairport.com
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
B 7% 48 2

The board (the "Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of Hainan Meilan
International Airport Company Limited (hereinafter referred to as “Meilan
Airport” or the “Company”, together with its subsidiaries referred to as the
"Group”) is pleased to announce the operating results of the Company, the
unaudited financial results of the Group for the six months ended 30 June
2022, which have been reviewed by the Audit Committee of the Company (the
“Audit Committee”), and the prospects for the second half of 2022.

BEXHEREEROBRAF AT EMHE
BIR[AQF] EAEAMBRAANE AEE])E
F(EED2(ESE)MALHEARREBEE T
ToERAZTRALERNEAZEERER KEXRE
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For the six months ended 30 June

BEANA=tHILEAREA

(RMB'000) 2022 2021 Change
(AREFT) —E=-= = 23
Turnover ] 622,634 893,983 -30.35%
Gross profit E A 68,169 479,579 -85.79%
(Net loss)/Net profit attributable to shareholders % 5 fE{t (G E18) /47 (11,788) 345,356 -103.41%
(Losses)/Earnings per share — basic (RMB Yuan) @& (Ei8) /BF - EX(ARET) (0.02) 0.73 -102.74%
Net operating cash flow BEBRSINE 191,012 406,313 -52.99%
EBITDA EBITDA 240,447 529,985 -54.63%
As at As at
30 June 31 December
2022 2021
(RMB'000) R-—E=-Z R-ZZE-——F Change
(AREFIT) ANA=+HB +ZA=+—H =
Total assets BARE 10,840,108 11,135,347 -2.65%
Total liabilities wmaE 6,299,507 6,569,278 -4.11%
Shareholders’ equity P R 4,540,601 4,566,069 -0.56%
Current ratio mENL = 8% 10% -2.00%
Gearing ratio BEBEX 58.11% 58.99% -0.88%
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BIEE R R LT

For the six months ended 30 June 2022, the Group’'s total revenue amounted
to RMB622,633,880, representing a decrease of 30.35% as compared to
the corresponding period of 2021. Net losses attributable to shareholders
amounted to RMB11,788,124, while the net profit attributable to shareholders
for the corresponding period of 2021 was RMB345,356,411. Losses per share
amounted to RMBO0.02 (the corresponding period of 2021: earnings per share
of RMBO0.73).

OPERATING ENVIRONMENT

Civil Aviation Industry of China

Since 2020, the operation safety risks arising from the COVID-19 Pandemic
(the “Pandemic”) have been continuously accumulating, and the pressure
on the production and operation of the civil aviation industry has continued to
increase. In the first half of 2022, due to the impact from multiple outbreaks of
the Pandemic, the civil aviation industry was faced with the twofold challenges
of operation safety and Pandemic prevention and control. The entire industry
adhered closely to the working objectives of “Keep the basic boundary,
stabilize the expectation, strengthen the foundation, explore the potential,
optimize the quality and efficacy, and break new records”, to stabilize the
overall situation of civil aviation safety, protect the boundary of civil aviation on
Pandemic prevention and control, reverse the declining trend of transportation
production, sustain the efforts of infrastructure construction, make solid
progress in deepening the reform of civil aviation, and solidly promoted the
target tasks determined by the National Aviation Work Conference at the
beginning of the year. As of 30 June 2022, the industry had completed 29.34
billion ton kilometers of transportation, 118 million passenger carriers and
3.077 million tons of cargo and mail transportation, representing 46.7%, 36.7%
and 87.5% of the corresponding period in 2019, respectively.

In January 2022, the Civil Aviation Administration of China (the “CAAC") issued
the “14th Five-Year Plan for Green Development of Civil Aviation”, which
clarifies the guiding concepts, basic principles, objective requirements and
primary missions of the green development of civil aviation during the “14th
Five-Year” Plan period. The content ranges from “Energy Saving and Emission
Reduction” to “Green Development”, with a richer content and broader scope,
and has better undertaken the implementation of the “14th Five-Year Plan for
Civil Aviation Development”. It will effectively guide the green, low-carbon and
circumscribed development of the civil aviation industry.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Regarding the construction of smart airports, the CAAC issued the “Roadmap
for Smart Civil Aviation Construction” (the “Roadmap”) in January 2022.
The Roadmap closely follows the “One, Two, Three, Three, Four” civil
aviation overall work idea of the "14th Five-Year” Plan period (that is, to
practice one concept; to promote two flanks of public transport aviation and
general aviation; to adhere to the three basic boundaries of flight safety,
integrity safety, and sincere service; to construct three systems of complete
modernized national airport system, air transportation network system, and
production and operation guarantee system; to forge four new horizons: first,
a new structure for the collaborative development of civil aviation industry;
second, a new breakthrough in the construction of smart civil aviation; third,
a new enhancement of resource guarantee capacity; and fourth, a new
efficacy of industry governance system and governance capacity). It seizes the
strategic development goal of civil aviation, the phase characteristics of the
transition and the requirements of high quality development of the industry,
and compile the general outline around the high level design of smart civil
aviation construction. “Smart Travel, Smart Aviation Control, Smart Airport
and Smart Surveillance” are the core focuses and significant contents of the
construction of a smart civil aviation transportation system. The publication of
the Roadmap symbolizes that China’'s smart civil aviation is moving from the
high-level design to the thorough implementation stage, and the construction
of smart civil aviation will effectively enhance the standard of civil aviation
safety development as well as the benefits, efficiency and development quality
of the industry operation, which will better serve the national strategy and
better meet the needs of people’s good life.

Regarding the service quality, the CAAC officially issued the “Special Plan for
Passenger Services of Air Transport during the 14th Five-Year Plan Period”
(the “Service Plan”) in June 2022, which clarifies the work objectives and key
tasks of the air transport passenger services.

The Service Plan requires that by the end of the “14th Five-Year” Plan period,
the operational efficacy of China’s civil aviation will be improved continuously
with flight regularly rate at above 80%, the quality of civil aviation service
supply will be comprehensively enhanced, significant achievements will be
made in intelligent civil aviation, the service governance system and capacity
will be further strengthened, civil aviation service brands will continue to
emerge, and people's sense of satisfaction, fulfillment and securities towards
civil aviation services will be further elevated. The Service Plan specifies eleven
specific targets in three aspects: regular flights, intelligent transportation
and service qualities, such as the paperless capacity of all processes for
passengers at airports of over ten million passengers reaching 100%, and the
standards of luggage tracking services reaching 90%.

To facilitate the smooth implementation of the Service Plan, the CAAC has
launched an eight-month “Civil Aviation Service Planning and Implementation
Year” 2022 campaign since 1 May 2022 to promote the achievement of
high-quality development of civil aviation services.

The Group will follow the requirements of each document issued by the
CAAC, focus on the objectives of “Green Development”, “Smart Civil
Aviation” and “Sincere Service”, and constantly improve the service quality
and operational efficacy of Meilan Airport; continue to implement the
requirements of “Prevention of importation of external cases, prevention of
domestic resurgence of cases, and implementation of measures for individuals
and goods”, pay close attention to the normal prevention and control of the
Pandemic, and strive to promote the recovery of aviation business under the
premise of ensuring safe operation.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BIEE R oA

Tourism in Hainan Province

In 2022, due to the impact of the Pandemic, Hainan's tourism industry faced a
series of unfavourable factors. The government of Hainan Province at all levels
issued policies to help enterprises to alleviate their difficulties, and the industry
associations proactively saved themselves by seeking for sources of tourists
and follow the market hot spots etc. During the period ended 30 June 2022,
the province received a total of 34,691,600 domestic and foreign tourists,
representing a year-on-year decrease of 19.7%, and the total tourism revenue
was about RMB64.334 billion, representing a year-on-year decrease of 21.5%.

In the first half of 2022, in order to minimize the impact of the Pandemic on
the tourism industry in Hainan Province, the governments of Hainan Province
at all levels highly valued the development of the tourism market during the
traditional peak seasons and holidays. On the basis of strict implementation of
general prevention and control measures against the Pandemic, they actively
innovated holiday tourism products, improved holiday tourism services and
strengthened holiday tourism supervision, and the tourism market operated
systematically and orderly overall. During the Chinese New Year Golden Week
(i.e. from 31 January to 6 February 2022), the province received 5,411,300
tourists and attained a total tourism revenue of RMB7.53 billion; during the
Labour Day holiday period (i.e. from 30 April to 4 May 2022), the Province
received 1,326,600 tourists and attained a total tourism revenue of RMB1.518
billion; during the Dragon Boat Festival holiday period (i.e. from 3 June to
5 June 2022), the Province received 1,329,800 tourists and attained a total
tourism revenue of RMB1.244 billion.

In April 2022, Hainan Province officially announced the second season of the
“Happy Shopping for Healthy Tourism” of the “My ‘Treat Date’ with Hainan”
joint promotion campaign in 2022. A wide range of promotion activities
were organized through the joint promotion with various municipal and
provincial tourism and cultural bureaus, financial institutions, duty-free stores,
tourism-related associations, new media platforms, OTA (Online Travel Agency)
platforms, airlines, ports and other tourism-related enterprises to launch
featured tourism itinerary products. The campaign lasted for two months and
was themed around marine tourism, shopping tourism, recreation tourism,
wedding tourism, MICE tourism, cuisine tourism and other industry ecology
for further cultivation. Through a series of tourism product promotions, special
marketing, thematic activities, hot events combination and selected “Happy
Shopping for Healthy Tourism” products, in order to attract domestic and
foreign tourists to visit Hainan, boost spring tourism spending and generating
revenue for Hainan’s tourism and cultural industry.

Since 28 April 2022, Hainan Province arranged financial funds of
RMB100,000,000 to launch the first round of “Assist Business to Favor the
People, Relish Joy in Hainan” consumer vouchers distribution campaign. Cities
and counties such as Haikou and Sanya set up complementary funds to guide
banks and business enterprises to participate in the campaign together, based
on the principle of “government subsidies, banks support and merchants
participate”, distributing duty-free, shopping, food and beverage and tourism
consumption vouchers across the Province. In particular, RMB30,000,000 were
used for the distribution of off-shore duty-free digital consumption vouchers
in RMB. This directly boosted the total retail sales of social consumer goods
by more than RMB1.2 billion and contributed to the rapid growth of social
consumption.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

On 29 April 2022, “Several Measures to Promote Consumption in Hainan
Province” was released to stimulate consumption potential through a total of
8 measures such as promoting the accelerated growth of social consumption,
boosting the growth of duty-free consumption, encouraging the upgrading
of food and beverage consumption, enhancing the growth momentum of
automobile consumption, encouraging the consumption of green household
appliances, fostering and strengthening the growth of online retail, leading the
consumption of fashionable new products, and organizing good consumption
promotion festivals.

In June 2022, “Happy Shopping for Healthy Tourism — 2022 Hainan Tourism
Consumption Carnival Joint Promotion Campaign” launching ceremony and
the first stop of the roadshow in Changsha, Hunan Province was held. It was
planned that roadshows will be held in eight cities, including Guangzhou,
Wouhan, Chongging, Chengdu, Hangzhou, Nanjing, Beijing, and Shanghai, in two
months focusing on food, accommodation, travel, shopping, and entertainment.
Targeting at different characteristics of different city tourists, each campaign
will set a different promotion theme, the characteristics of tourism experience
and shopping consumption organic combination, in forms of Hainan’s tourism
promotion video, sunshine island roadshow promotion, Hainan features
performance, and national fun interactive lottery, so that tourists around the
country can closely appreciate Hainan's tourism culture.

For the above joint promotion, Hainan Tourism and Culture Department will
collaborate with a total of 55 travel-related enterprises such as China Duty
Free Group Co., Ltd. ("CDF"), Sanya Hainan Tourism Duty-free City, Hainan
Holdings Global Boutique Duty-free City, Shenzhen Duty-free Haikou Mission
Hills Duty-free City, CNSC Sanya International Duty-free Shopping Park and
other duty free enterprises, Hainan Airlines and Southern Airlines, as well
as major travel agencies, hotels and attractions in Hainan Province, to jointly
distribute 1 million Hainan tourism consumption “gift packs” which worth over
RMB100 million through the official “Smart Travel Hainan” APP.

While focusing on the Pandemic prevention and control, Hainan Province
will further promote the recovery of consumption, continue to carry out the
activity of "attracting customers into the island” to help Hainan's tourism
economy grow rapidly in the post-Pandemic era, accelerate the construction
of international tourism consumption centres and guide the return of overseas
consumption, and promote the rapid formation of the "“dual circulation”
pattern.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Tourism Highlights of Hainan Province
In the first half of 2022, Hainan Province has adopted a series of measures to
stimulate consumption vitality and promote the recovery of the tourism market.

The construction of key tourism projects in Hainan Province has been
promoted in an orderly manner:

The Haikou International Duty-free City project, located on the east
side of the new harbor on the west coast of Haikou City, has a planned
site area of approximately 675 mu and a total gross floor area of
approximately 926,000 square meters, which is a world-class resort-type
commercial district integrating duty-free, office, apartment, leisure
and cultural tourism. As of today, the construction of the duty-free
commercial centre of the Haikou International Duty-free City Project is
completed, and the electrical and mechanical equipment has entered
the commissioning stage, and is expected to be completed and open for
customers within this year.

Hainan Island Tourism Highway Project is a leading major infrastructure
project of the Hainan Free Trade Port ("Hainan Free Trade Port”)
and is expected to be fully opened to traffic by the end of 2023. The
project runs through 12 coastal cities and counties, including Haikou,
Qionghai and Sanya, as well as Yangpu Economic Development Zone,
and connects the characteristic bay, cape, characteristic town, tourist
attraction and coastal resort along the way. As of 20 July 2022, the total
investment of the project reached RMB7.814 billion, accounting for
54.3% of the total investment budget.

Various types of recreational activities launched in full swing:

10

In June 2022, the China Super League and the Chinese University
Basketball Association consecutively began in Haikou's Wuyuan River
Stadium. The two prestigious national tournaments lasted for more
than a month in Haikou, which marked the progressive improvement
of Haikou's sports infrastructure and sports training grounds. The
prestigious tournaments have their own flow attributes which not only
expand the city popularity and influence of Haikou, but also propel the
development of tourism and industries such as youth training in Haikou
and even Hainan.

On 28 June 2022, the opening ceremony of the National Diving Southern
Training Ground and the launching event of Jiajing Island Diving was
held in Shimeibay Tourist Resort in Wanning. The official opening of the
National Diving Southern Training Ground marked the official landing of
the National Diving Southern Training Ground in Shimeibay, Wanning,
Hainan. The National Diving Southern Training Ground in Wanning
Shimeibay is an important measure for Hainan Province to establish a
national sports tourism demonstration area, to respond to the major
strategic needs of national sports tourism, and to build Hainan Free
Trade Port. It will boost the development of sports industry such as the
development of national diving sport, the construction of talent teams
and the construction of training camps. It is conducive to gradually
turn Hainan into a national and international sports training ground and
tournament center, so that sports become a new highland and new
landmark to promote Hainan's tourism and accelerate the construction of
the Hainan Free Trade Port.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Through the way of “integrating tourism into tournaments and promoting
tourism with tournaments”, Hainan Province promotes tourism consumption,
creates an integrated development model of “sports + tourism” and “sports
+ culture”, promotes the high-quality development of sports tourism, and
supports the construction of Hainan International Tourism Consumption Centre
and National Sports Tourism Demonstration Zone.

The Group will pay close attention to the development of tourism in Hainan
Province, actively cooperate with the local government for the promotion and
marketing of the tourism market, and seize the development opportunities to
help Meilan Airport achieve another record of passenger and cargo and mail
throughput.

Transportation within the Island

According to the “14th Five-Year Plan for Integrated Transportation of Hainan
Province Transportation Plan” ((8EA [t AIGAEXBEER R E)), Hainan
Province will strive to achieve an accumulated investment of over RMB220
billion in the construction of transportation infrastructure in five years in the
Province by 2025. The goal is to significantly improve the competitiveness
and influence of gateway hub and ensure the comprehensive external
transportation channels will be smoothly accessible. With a more complete
transportation network on the Island, more efficient integrated transportation
services, and strong development momentum, the construction of a pilot area
for a leading transportation country will achieve remarkable results, and will
strongly support and guarantee the smooth realization of the initial goals of the
construction of the Hainan Free Trade Port.

- In respect of roads, the Haikou section of G15 Shenyang-Hainan
Expressway project is an important integral part of G15 Shenyang-Hainan
Expressway, which is the "last kilometer section” of G15 Shenyang-
Hainan Expressway and G75 Lanzhou-Hainan Expressway in Hainan, and
is also the only channel of Hainan Provincial Expressway connecting to
the national expressway network. The construction of the project is of
significant value in improving the national expressway network and the
expressway network of Hainan Province, accelerating the “Qiongzhou
Strait Port and Shipping Integration”, improving the comprehensive
traffic and transportation capacity of the new port area, and promoting
comprehensive economic and social development along the route. As of
today, 99% of the project’s foundation work has been completed, 99%
of the bridge work has been completed, the pavement work is under
construction, and the project is expected to be commissioned by the end
of this year.

The Meilan Airport Expressway Project is located in the Jiangdong New
District of Haikou City, with a total investment of approximately RMB2.0
billion. The traffic infrastructure in Jiangdong New District of Haikou City
is gradually improving, and some of the important East-West trunk roads
have been completed and opened to traffic, but the connection and
diversion function of the North-South traffic is limited. The construction
of the project will improve access to the main city area from Meilan
Airport which will also facilitate the development and construction of the
surrounding of the cultural interaction group and the integrated service
group in Jiangdong New District. The project has obtained the feasibility
study approval, and is scheduled to begin construction within the year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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- In terms of airport construction, the Hainan Provincial Development
and Reform Commission announced in February 2022 the Key (Major)
Preparatory Projects Investment Plan of Hainan Province for 2022, and
Meilan Airport Phase Il Expansion Project was listed thereon, with a
planned investment of RMB65.0 billion. 2022 is a pivotal year in the
preparations for the island-wide closure of the Hainan Free Trade Port.
As the capital city of Hainan Province, Haikou will continue to improve its
competitiveness with high level of openness and build an international
gateway hub city.

- As for the port, the construction of the main structure of Haikou Xinhai
Roll-on/Roll-off Terminal Passenger Hub Project has been completed,
and the installation of glass curtain walls and metal roofing is under
construction, which is expected to be completed by the end of this year.
Upon completion, the project will become the largest comprehensive hub
for roll-on/roll-off port in China. The project, which started construction
in October 2020, is a key project to promote the integration of port
and shipping in Qiongzhou Strait and an important supporting facility
for the closure of the Hainan Free Trade Port. The total site area of the
project is 560,000 square meters, and the total gross floor area of the
comprehensive passenger transport hub is 83,200 square meters. Upon
completion, the project will provide 35.00 million passenger trips and
3.20 million vehicle trips per year, which will enable tourists to cross the
sea with “zero interchange” and greatly improve the service level of the
new seaport in Haikou, and radiate the development of tourism, culture
and commercial services in the surrounding areas, thus helping the
construction of the Hainan Free Trade Port.

Off-shore Duty-free

In the context of the global tourism consumption industry being hit hard by
the Pandemic as a whole, benefited from the effectiveness of the domestic
Pandemic prevention and control and the strong stimulus of the favorable
off-shore duty-free policy of Hainan, the off-shore duty-free shopping bonus
of Hainan has continued to be released, and the role of attracting overseas
consumption has become more obvious.

On 28 June 2022, the first Hainan International Off-shore Duty-free Shopping
Festival and the fourth Hainan Off-shore Duty-free Shopping Festival were
officially launched at CDF Sanya International Duty-Free Shopping Complex.
On the day of the launching ceremony, the “Hundred Million RMB Cash
Voucher Giveaway"” activity was launched simultaneously, and vouchers
were distributed to consumers, who could collect them through the official
self-media platform, strategic partner channels and outdoor advertisements
by scanning QR codes. During the festival, more than 50 special marketing
and branding events will be held in Hainan Province. The CDF will join
hands with stores in Hainan to invite consumers to share the “Come to
Hainan, Shop the World” duty-free shopping feast through the collaboration
of government-enterprises, thus further boosting confidence in duty-free
consumption after the Pandemic and promoting the rise of the duty-free
consumption market.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

This year's shopping festival lasts from June to December. As the longest
duty-free festival IP on Hainan Island with the most abundant thematic
activities, the festival will join hands with many consumers’ favorite brands to
launch thematic activities such as “Makeup Festival” and “Anniversary Store
Celebration” in different periods according to the diversified shopping needs
of different customer groups, and strive to enable consumers to fully enjoy
off-shore duty-free shopping through exciting activities. We are committed
to providing consumers with a wide range of activities to enjoy the fun of
off-shore duty-free shopping.

According to Haikou Customs, since the implementation of the new off-shore
duty-free policy for Hainan on 1 July 2020 to the end of June this year, the
customs supervised off-shore duty-free shopping amounted to RMB90.6 billion,
with approximately 125 million pieces sold and approximately 12.28 million
passengers shopping. The average daily shopping amount is approximately
RMB124 million, an increase of 257% compared with the amount before the
implementation of the new policy. The off-shore duty-free policy not only
brings real benefits to tourists, but also promotes the economic transformation
of Hainan and stimulates the consumption potential, becoming an important
engine for the economic development of Hainan.

For the six months ended 30 June 2022 , the retail sales of off-shore duty-free
commodities of Hainan Province was approximately RMB21.159 billion, the
number of duty-free shoppers was approximately 2.5678 million, and the
number of duty-free commodities sold was approximately 30.5057 million,
representing a decrease of 20.95%, 32.84% and 17.33%, respectively,
compared with the corresponding period of last year.

In the first half of 2022, due to the outbreak of Pandemic in China, the
passenger throughput of Meilan Airport was affected to a greater degree. The
offline sales of duty-free products at the off-shore duty-free stores of Meilan
Airport amounted to approximately RMB1,303 million, representing a decrease
of approximately 40.40% compared with the corresponding period of last year.

BUSINESS AND REVENUE REVIEW

Overview

In the first half of 2022, the international environment became increasingly
complex and severe, alongside frequent and sporadic outbreaks of the
Pandemic, with the adverse impacts having significantly increased. The
unexpected factors brought about substantial impacts, and the downward
pressure on the economy increased significantly in the second quarter. In
this context, the Group adhered to Pandemic prevention and control, strictly
complied with the requirements of the government at all levels and ensured
the safe operation of Meilan Airport, forming a strong synergy between
Pandemic prevention and control and its production and operation by focusing
on, making no errors on and promoting the two aspects. At the same time, we
actively promoted the relief of enterprises to contribute to the stabilization of
the economy.

In June 2022, to alleviate the operating pressure of tenants such as
those which are small and micro enterprises operating at Meilan Airport,
the Company actively responded to the Government's call for action and
implemented a phased rent reduction policy for certain Meilan Airport tenants
who met the relevant criteria, fulfilling its corporate social responsibility.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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In the first half of 2022, Meilan Airport received many domestic and
international awards for its excellent passenger service experience: having
won 44 awards at industrial, provincial and ministerial levels or above,
including 6 important international awards, 2 national awards, 2 provincial and
ministerial awards, and 34 industrial and honorable awards. Internationally,
Meilan Airport won the honor of “The Voice of the Customer” granted by ACI
(Airport Council International), the “Best Airport in the Asia-Pacific Region
in 2021 (15-25 Million Passengers Group)” and “Best Airport in the Asia-
Pacific Region for Hygiene Measures in 2021" granted by the ASQ (Airport
Service Quality) and “Best Regional Airport in China” and “Best Airport Staff”
granted by Skytrax, while the Terminal 2 of Meilan Airport was rated as a “5-
Star Airport” by Skytrax upon its opening. Domestically, Meilan Airport won
a number of prestigious awards including the “Excellent Airport in Service
Quality (for airports with 10 million passengers or more)” jointly awarded by
China Civil Airports Association, the China Academy of Civil Aviation Science
and Technology and the China Civil Aviation Newspaper Agency. These honors
indicated that the service quality of Meilan Airport has been highly recognized
and endorsed by the vast number of passengers, which has improved the
brand awareness and industry influence of Meilan Airport.

With respect to the construction of smart airport, in conjunction with the need
for normalizing Pandemic prevention and control, Meilan Airport launched the
Meilan Airport Smart Pandemic Prevention Headquarters Platform in January
2022. The platform graphically displays the route and process of nucleic acid
testing for incoming passengers, provides real-time control of the flights and
personnel involved in the Pandemic each day and of the nucleic acid collection
personnel and other on-site Pandemic prevention and management processes
and results. It also provides a large screen with real-time information on
Pandemic prevention and control, allowing comprehensive insight into the joint
Pandemic prevention and control command and processing work.

In May 2022, Meilan Airport put five smart Pandemic prevention gates
into operation. Through the gates, passengers can verify certain Pandemic
prevention data such as through comparing their faces against their ID cards,
taking temperature tests and checking their health codes, so that passengers
can realize self-service contactless passage.

The luggage tracking system of Meilan Airport was officially launched on
25 June 2022 for trial run, completing the work requirements of the CAAC
ahead of schedule and achieving real-time return of luggage information to
the CAAC, which is of great significance in improving the service standard of
Meilan Airport, promoting the high-quality development of “Smart Meilan” and
practically enhancing passengers’ sense of achievement and enjoyment in air
travel.

In the first half of 2022, Meilan Airport Hotel received a total of 5 awards
including the “Most Promising Hotel of 2021” from Ctrip and the “Hainan
OTA Top Rated Influential Hotel” from the hotel and catering industry of
Hainan Province. Meilan Airport Hotel has been promoting social awareness
and increasing the exposure of the hotel through channels such as radio and
internet topics. Due to the impact of the Pandemic, Meilan Airport Hotel
served approximately 101,300 guests for the six months ended 30 June 2022,
with a room occupancy rate of 63%, a decline from the corresponding period
of last year. To reduce the impact of the Pandemic on its business efficiency,
Meilan Airport Hotel has been actively optimizing the consumer markets
from various channels, establishing long-term cooperation with airlines, and
continuously developing business cooperation for airline rooms and training.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Overview of Aviation Business

In the first half of 2022, passenger traffic at Meilan Airport declined compared
with that of the corresponding period of 2021 due to the impact of the
resurgence of the Pandemic outbreak in several parts of the PRC and the
local Pandemic in Hainan. The Company will communicate with airlines to
resume flights to uninfected areas in a timely manner depending on the
progress of Pandemic prevention and control in each region. We leveraged
the small batches of seasonal travelers from Qingming Festival and Labor
Day to enhance the advertising for the Haikou tourism market in conjunction
with major airlines, continuously promoting positive information about the
Haikou market and increasing the seat capacity of flights. At the same time,
the Company worked with OTA platforms such as Tongcheng Travel and the
Bureau of Tourism, Culture, Radio, Television and Sports of Haikou City to
launch promotional activities for the airline market, in order to attract traffic for
the airline market and increase market development efforts.

As of the date of this interim report, international and regional passenger routes
at Meilan Airport have not yet been resumed. In the first half of 2022, Meilan
Airport has established a total of 199 departure routes, including 195 domestic
routes, representing a year-on-year increase of 22 routes; 4 international freight
routes; and has extended its reach to 115 cities, including 110 domestic freight
cities and 5 international freight cities. A total of 35 airlines operated at Meilan
Airport, including 33 domestic airlines and 2 international airlines.

Details of the aviation traffic throughput for the six months ended 30 June
2022 and the comparative figures in the corresponding period of last year are
set out below:
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For the six months ended 30 June
BEAA=+HLA<EA

2022 2021 Change

—E-= —E— #
Aircraft takeoff and landing (flights) T B P 2R R (BB R) 58,631 74,940 -21.76%
in which: domestic Hep: B{R 58,429 74,693 -21.77%
international and regional B PR K2 b (& 202 247 -18.22%
Passenger throughput (headcount in ten thousand) REFLE (BAKR) 656.13 996.69 -34.17%
in which: domestic =R 656.10 996.69 -34.17%
international and regional B R K% [ 0.03 0.00 100%
Cargo and mail throughput (tons) EBAMLE (W) 74,186.50 86,827.90 -14.56%
in which: domestic Hih B 72,097.50 83,488.10 -13.64%
international and regional B BR K b [ 2,089.00 3,339.80 -37.45%
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EIEE T R D

In the first half of 2022, following the adverse impact from the resurgence —T - —F ¥ F TEBERETFREZFE %
of the Pandemic, the passenger throughput of Meilan Airport recorded a F;%%%E&Eﬁﬂigf%iﬂﬁﬁﬁ' T #H=E
decrease compared with the corresponding period of last year. The Group's ——®XA=+HItEA ALEBEfHZET %f?ﬂlﬂl}\

revenue from aviation business for the six months ended 30 June 2022 was A AR#¥212,671,439T B _E - —F R FFE
RMB212,671,439, representing a decrease of 25.36% as compared to the 25.36% ° FFIBWMT ¢
corresponding period of 2021. Details are as follows:

For the Changes over the
six months ended corresponding
30 June 2022 period of 2021
BE-®-= B=2=—F
NA=Z+TRHILEXREA =] HA 4 &

(RMB)

(AR®IT)
Passenger service charges REREE 98,063,591 -33.14%
Ground handling service income i T AR 7% B 69,055,628 -19.48%
Fees and related charges on aircraft takeoff and landing TR B P K% AR U B 45,652,220 -13.21%
Total revenue from aviation business L2731 ON 212,671,439 -25.36%

Overview of Non-Aviation Business M= ERK LR

For the six months ended 30 June 2022, due to the aforementioned adverse HE_Z - —“FXA=+HBIt @A ER Al
factors, the Group achieved a revenue from its non-aviation business of AT HEZE X AEEBETIHIEM = %i‘?ﬂlﬁl)\}\ﬁﬁ—%
RMB409,962,441, representing a decrease of 32.69% as compared with the  409,962,4417C * 8 —F — —F A # T [£32.69% °
corresponding period of 2021.

For the Changes over the
six months ended corresponding
30 June 2022 period of 2021
BE-ZT_C BR-B--F
NA=+RHIEANEA [ HA 4 &

(RMB)

(AR¥IT)
Franchise income R AR WA 230,507,465 -38.44%
Hotel income B IE W A 40,291,984 -21.04%
Rental income ek A 37,160,652 18.26%
Freight and packaging income HERBPERA 35,702,335 -37.01%
VIP room income EEERA 20,005,729 -48.41%
Car parking income FEIFZKA 7,374,771 -0.01%
Other income E A 38,919,505 -21.13%
Total revenue from non-aviation business IEMEERAWA 409,962,441 -32.69%
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Franchise Income

In the first half of 2022, the franchise income of the Group aggregated to
RMB230,507,465, representing a year-on-year decrease of 38.44%, which was
mainly attributable to the significant decrease in offline sales as a result of the
decreased passenger traffic at Meilan Airport due to the continued impact of
the Pandemic, thereby leading to a decrease in franchise income of the Group
as compared with that of the corresponding period of last year.

Hotel Income

In the first half of 2022, the hotel income of the Group amounted to
RMB40,291,984, representing a year-on-year decrease of 21.04%, which was
mainly due to the decrease in the occupancy rate of Meilan Airport Hotel as
a result of the decrease in the passenger traffic of Meilan Airport due to the
continued impact of the Pandemic.

Rental Income

In the first half of 2022, the rental income of the Group aggregated to
RMB37,160,652, representing a year-on-year increase of 18.26%, which was
mainly attributable to the fact that since the commencement of operation of
Meilan Airport Phase Il Expansion Project (the “Phase Il Expansion Project”)
in December 2021, the area of externally leased shops has increased, resulting
in an increase in rental income of the Company.

Freight and Packaging Income

In the first half of 2022, the freight and packaging income of the Group
aggregated to RMB35,702,335, representing a year-on-year decrease of
37.01%, which was mainly due to the year-on-year decrease in the standard
rates of freight and carton packaging charges and in the sales volume of carton
packaging, resulting in a year-on-year decrease in the income.

VIP Room Income

In the first half of 2022, the VIP room income of the Group aggregated to
RMB20,005,729, representing a year-on-year decrease of 48.41%, which
was mainly attributable to the decrease in the VIP customers served as
continuously affected by the Pandemic, leading to a significant decrease in the
income.

Car Parking Income

In the first half of 2022, the car parking income of the Group aggregated
to RMB7,374,771, remaining at a similar level as compared with the
corresponding period last year, which was mainly attributable to the lease of
the operating rights of parking lots of the Company in exchange for rent at a
relatively fixed rate.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Asset Analysis
As at 30 June 2022, the total assets of the Group amounted to
RMB10,840,107,711, representing a decrease of 2.65% as compared
with that as at 31 December 2021, among which, the current assets
amounted to RMB487,759,368, and the non-current assets amounted to
RMB10,352,348,343.

Cost and Expense Analysis

For the six months ended 30 June 2022, the Group's operating costs amounted
to RMB518,636,648, the sales expenses amounted to RMB2,134,534 and
the administrative expenses amounted to RMB35,460,471, the operating
costs, sales expenses and administrative expenses amounted to a total of
RMB556,231,653, which represented an increase of 24.563% as compared with
that of the corresponding period of 2021. The increase in costs and expenses
was attributable to:

(1) depreciation expenses and amortization of intangible assets increased
by RMB101,072,281 as compared to the corresponding period in 2021,
mainly due to an increase in depreciation of fixed assets and amortization
of land use rights as the Phase |l Expansion Project was put into
operation in December 2021;

(2)  the labor costs increased by RMB12,563,373 as compared with that
of the corresponding period of 2021, mainly due to the increase
in labor costs from the increasing demand of manpower since the
commencement of operation of the Phase |l Expansion Project; and

(3) the airport and logistic comprehensive services fee increased by
RMB20,547,926 as compared with that of the corresponding period
of 2021, mainly due to the increase in relevant costs since the
commencement of operation of the Phase Il Expansion Project.

For the six months ended 30 June 2022, the finance expenses of the Group
amounted to RMB48,393,195, representing an increase of RMB27,914,179
as compared with that of the corresponding period of 2021, which was
mainly due to the cessation of capitalization of borrowing interest since the
commencement of operation of the Phase Il Expansion Project in December
2021.

Gearing Ratio

As at 30 June 2022, the Group had total current assets of RMB487,759,368,
total assets of RMB10,840,107,711, total current liabilities of
RMB6,089,986,467 and total liabilities of RMB6,299,506,834. As at 30 June
2022, the Group’'s gearing ratio (total liabilities/total assets) was 58.11%,
representing a decrease of 0.88% as compared to that as at 31 December
2021.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Pledge of Assets

As mentioned in the Company’s announcement dated 1 February 2018, the
Company and Haikou Meilan International Airport Company Limited (& 0 38
EE#15 AR & T A F) (the “Parent Company”), as co-borrowers, pledged
the land and buildings owned by the Company and the Parent Company as
security to secure the syndicated loan (the “Syndicated Loan"”) of RMB7.8
billion from China Development Bank Limited (the “CDB"), Hainan Branch of
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited (the “ICBC Hainan Branch”)
and Hainan Branch of Agricultural Bank of China Limited (the “ABC Hainan
Branch”), as co-lenders, for a period of 20 years, which shall be solely used
for the construction of the airport project of the Phase Il Expansion Project.

Capital Structure

The major objective of the Group’s capital management is to ensure the ability
of ongoing operations and to maintain a healthy capital ratio in order to support
its business and maximize shareholders’ interests. The Group continued to
emphasize the appropriate mix of equity and debt to ensure an efficient capital
structure to reduce capital cost.

As at 30 June 2022, the interest-bearing debts of the Group mainly included
bank loans and finance lease liabilities (the “Total Borrowings”), amounting
to approximately RMB1,964,049,642, and the cash and cash equivalents were
approximately RMB125,145,255. The gearing ratio (net liabilities/total capital)
of the Group was 28.83% as at 30 June 2022 (31 December 2021: 28.64%).

The Group maintained a balanced portfolio of loans at fixed interest rates
and variable rates to manage interest expenses. As at 30 June 2022, the
Syndicated Loan contract was denominated in Renminbi with a fixed rate, of
which the amount is RMB1,944,000,000.

The Group aimed to keep the balance between the continuity and flexibility of
funds through utilizing its Total Borrowings. As at 30 June 2022, 100.00% of
the Total Borrowings of the Group would/may become due within one year.
As at 30 June 2022, the Total Borrowings of the Group were denominated in
Renminbi, the cash and cash equivalents were mainly held in Renminbi.

Cash Flow

For the six months ended 30 June 2022, the Group's net cash inflow from
operating activities was RMB191,012,108, representing a year-on-year
decrease of 52.99%, which was mainly because the Group's aviation business
volume decreased due to the ongoing impact from the resurgence of the
Pandemic in China, resulting in a decrease in revenue. Meanwhile, the costs
and expenses increased after the Phase Il Expansion Project commenced
operation.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BIEER ol

For the six months ended 30 June 2022, the Group's net cash outflow for
investment activities was RMB98,261,091, representing a year-on-year
increase of 11.18%, which was mainly due to the increase in demand for
payment for the construction of the Phase Il Expansion Project.

For the six months ended 30 June 2022, the Group's net cash outflow for
financing activities was RMB145,068,122, representing a year-on-year increase
of 145.51%, which was mainly attributable to repayment of matured debts and
payment of interests.

Significant Investments Held and Their Performances
Hainan Airlines Airport Holding (Group) Company Limited ("HNA Airport
Holdings"”), the major associate of the Company, is principally engaged in
the operation and management of Sanya Phoenix Airport, and is engaged in
the construction of Sanya new airport and real estate development business
of Hainan Airlines international travel island and in other investment activities
through investments held in its associates.

HNA Airport Holdings is a subsidiary of Hainan Airport Infrastructure Co.,
Ltd (formerly known as “"HNA Infrastructure Investment Group Co., Ltd.")
("Hainan Airport”), which was included in the restructuring of Hainan Airport
in February 2021. Taking into account the declaration of creditors’ rights,
the retention of creditors’ rights, the settlement of creditors’ rights and the
implementation of the restructuring plan of Hainan Airport Restructuring by
HNA Airport Holdings, the net liabilities attributable to the Parent Company in
the consolidated financial statements was approximately RMB2.20 billion as at
31 December 2021 after the derecognition of other non-current financial assets
and the provision of expected credit losses of receivables from related parties
according to the relevant restructuring plan. For the six months ended 30 June
2022, HNA Airport Holdings recorded a net profit attributable to shareholders
of the Parent Company of RMB60 million due to the continuous impact of
the Pandemic. The Group recognised the final balance of the corresponding
long-term equity investment by calculating the net assets share based on
the amount attributable to the Parent Company in the consolidated financial
statements and shareholding ratios. As at 30 June 2022 and 31 December
2021, the carrying amount of the Group's long-term equity investment in HNA
Airport Holdings was nil.

Save as disclosed above, for the six months ended 30 June 2022, the Group
did not hold other material investments that have a significant impact on the
overall operations of the Group.

Material Acquisitions and Disposals of Subsidiaries,

Associated Companies and Joint Ventures

For the six months ended 30 June 2022, the Company did not carry out any
other material acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries, associated companies
or joint ventures.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENT
AND EXPECTED SOURCE OF FUND

On 11 May 2020, the Company and the Parent Company entered into the
supplemental investment and construction agreement, pursuant to which the
Company agreed to provide funds amounting to approximately RMB7.646
billion to construct part of the Phase Il Expansion Project (the “Company
Construction Project”). The Company considers to provide the remaining
funds required for the Company Construction Project by the followings (subject
to future adjustment):

(1) The Syndicated Loan

As disclosed in the circular of the Company dated 6 March 2018,
pursuant to the Loan Agreement dated 1 February 2018, the CDB, the
ICBC Hainan Branch and the ABC Hainan Branch agreed to grant the
Syndicated Loan to the Company and the Parent Company on a joint and
several basis in the principal amount of RMB7.8 billion for a period of
20 years, which shall be solely used for the construction of the Airport
Project, and pursuant to the Loan Allocation Agreement entered into
between the Company and the Parent Company on 1 February 2018,
the Company was allocated RMB3.9 billion (representing 50% of the
Syndicated Loan). As at 30 June 2022, the Company has drawn down
RMB1.944 billion and the remaining of RMB1.956 billion will be utilized
in the construction of the Company Construction Project;

(2) The Local Government Special Bonds
The local government special bonds are expected to be issued by
relevant governmental authorities in Hainan Province to support the
construction of the Airport Project. It is expected that certain proportion
of the proceeds from the local government special bonds will be
allocated to the Company, which will be utilized in the construction of
the Company Construction Project; and

(3) Working Capital
The Company will use part of its working capital generated from
its operation activities to support the construction of the Company
Construction Project.

Save as disclosed above and issuance of domestic shares as consideration for
the transfer of the Phase | runway assets to the Parent Company, during the
six months ended 30 June 2022 and as of the date of this interim report, there
was no other future plan approved by the Group for any material investments
or purchase of capital assets.

B E R DT

AREAREFERAHESRR

ARAR-ZZE-_ZEZFAA+T -BEBGRAFTILE
ERBWMAWR) Bt ARFARBRFEOARE
76.46(E T AR —HERBEAEPHNLHEE (£
AZREE] - ARQRFEEBEBTXMAMBENAR
AEREEMNNGAFES (AR TUHEE)

(1) BEIEX
BIMARRBSHA T N\E=ZANBZREK
FiE BEAHA-_ZT—\E_AF—RZE
e BREAZET THBTERE DT
MEEBITEEEDTTRBRER REFIEE
MAARREBARKHEEER A2 AA
R¥78BIT - BHI20F - {£7] R EZE KI5 1E
B REBEAQRAESARR - ZE—NEFE_A—
Bl V2 ERDERHHE AR ESIRARE
39T (HIREERN0%)  HE-_ZT - —
FXNAZ+H ARQRZREMAREI19.441(8
T B TARI1966E TS AN EREARRQF
ERIEA

(2) HHTBFEHRES
78408 7 44 4R B T 30 P 45 9k S0 05 SRR M35 0
BT B SR ES - BHE T2
BEAEEESFERELOETART - &
REBARERAATNRREL - &

(3) EEES
ARTRBRED B FELRHHMENLEA
S AXHAAARRBEOER -

BEXHBEEEMMSARYE-—HREREEE
R ETEEN RBEE-_T__FXA=1H
LEAREARBEATHBERY  AKSEHELE
HMARREERREHBABELEENTE

—Eo—EnHEE < SEEMEREERAARAA 2]



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 30 June 2022, the Group had a total of 1,232 employees, representing
an increase of 79 employees as compared to that at the beginning of 2022.
The increase in employees was due to an increase in labor demand as a result
of the commencement of operations of Phase Il Expansion Project. Employees
of the Group are remunerated based on their performances, seniority and
prevailing industry practices. The Group reviews its remuneration policy on a
regular basis. Bonuses and commissions may be awarded to the employees as
incentives based on the assessment of their performance.

RETIREMENT PENSION

The Group shall participate in the retirement scheme operated by the relevant
local governmental institutions. The PRC government shall be responsible for
the pension of the retired employees. The Group has to make a contribution at
a certain percentage of the salary of the employees with permanent residence
in the PRC (according to the retirement pension policies in Hainan Province,
the contribution ratio for the six months ended 30 June 2022 was 16%). Once
the Group contributes to the retirement scheme, the employer’s contribution
is fully owned by the employees. For the six months ended 30 June 2022, the
pension contribution of the Group was approximately RMB17,635,625 (for the
corresponding period of last year, the pension contribution of the Group for the
six months ended 30 June 2021 was approximately RMB12,761,830).

ENTRUSTED DEPOSITS AND OVERDUE TIME
DEPOSITS

As at 30 June 2022, the Group did not have any entrusted deposits or overdue
time deposits.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Save for the arrangements under the Syndicated Loan and the arbitration
mentioned in the section headed “Material Litigation or Arbitration” below
in this interim report, as at 30 June 2022, the Group had no other significant
contingent liability.

EXPOSURE TO FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISKS

The businesses of the Group are principally conducted in Renminbi, except
certain revenue from the aviation business, purchase of equipment and
consultation service fees which are denominated in US dollars or HK dollars.
The Group has not entered into any forward contracts to hedge its exposure to
foreign exchange risks.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

INTEREST RATE RISK

The Group's interest rate risk arises from long-term interest bearing borrowings
including long-term borrowings and long-term payables. Financial liabilities
issued at floating rates expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk.
Financial liabilities issued at fixed rates expose the Group to fair value interest
rate risk.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

There were no important events affecting the Group that have occurred since
30 June 2022.

NO OTHER MATERIAL CHANGE

Other than those disclosed in this interim report, there has been no other
material change in relation to the information disclosed in the 2021 annual
report in accordance with Rule 32 set out in Appendix 16 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities (the "Listing Rules”) on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “"Hong Kong Stock Exchange").

THE PROGRESS OF PROPOSED ISSUANCE
OF NEW DOMESTIC SHARES AND NEW H
SHARES

References are made to the circulars of the Company dated 28 April 2017,
6 March 2018, 18 April 2019 and 7 January 2020 in relation to, among other
things, the past Parent Company Subscription and the past new H shares
issue and the extension of validity period of the shareholders’ resolutions and
authorisation granted to the Board in relation to the past Parent Company
Subscription and the past new H shares issue.

According to the past Parent Company Subscription, the Parent Company
agreed to subscribe for the new domestic shares, which include:

(1) 189,987,125 new domestic shares as consideration for the transfer of
the Phase | runway assets by the Parent Company to the Company; and

(2) 12,500,000 new domestic shares by cash at an aggregate subscription
price of RMB100,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$111,632,061),
at the subscription price of RMB8.00 (equivalent to approximately
HK$8.93) per new domestic share.

Pursuant to the past new H shares issue, the Company may proceed to place
not more than 200,000,000 new H shares to qualified institutions, corporation
and individuals and other investors.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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The validity period of the shareholders’ resolutions and authorisation granted
to the Board in relation to the past Parent Company Subscription and the past
new H shares issue expired on 25 June 2020.

References are made to the announcement of the Company dated 24 July
2020 and the circular of the Company dated 20 August 2020 in relation to,
among other things, the Parent Company Subscription and the new H shares
issue. On 24 July 2020, the Company and the Parent Company entered into
the Parent Company domestic shares subscription agreement (the “2020
Parent Company Domestic Shares Subscription Agreement”), pursuant to
which, the Parent Company agreed to subscribe for the subscription shares,
being not more than 140,741,000 new domestic shares as consideration
for the transfer of the Phase | runway assets by the Parent Company to the
Company. There is no other material change on the terms of the 2020 Parent
Company Domestic Shares Subscription Agreement as compared to those in
the past Parent Company domestic shares subscription agreements, except
for the adjustments to the subscription price, number and method for the
subscription shares. Meanwhile, the Board proposed the new H shares issue
(i.e. issue of not more than 155,000,000 new H shares). In relation to the
Parent Company Subscription and the new H shares issue, the Company held
the extraordinary general meeting, the H shareholders class meeting and
the domestic shareholders class meeting on 18 September 2020, where the
relevant resolutions were considered and approved.

Reference is made to the announcement of the Company dated 22 August
2021 and the circular dated 21 September 2021 in relation to, among other
things, the Parent Company Subscription and the New H Shares Issue. On 21
August 2021, the Company and the Parent Company entered into the 2021
Supplemental Parent Company Domestic Shares Subscription Agreement
(the “2021 Supplemental Parent Company Domestic Shares Subscription
Agreement”), pursuant to which, the Company and the Parent Company
mutually agreed to make certain amendments to the 2020 Parent Company
Domestic Shares Subscription Agreement. The Company held the extraordinary
general meeting, the H shareholders class meeting and the domestic
shareholders class meeting on 8 October 2021, where the relevant resolutions
were considered and approved to extend the validity period of shareholders’
resolutions and authorization granted to the Board in relation to the Parent
Company Subscription and the new H shares issue for a further period of
twelve (12) months, commencing from 18 September 2021 and ending on 17
September 2022.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Reference is made to the announcement of the Company dated 8 August 2022,
the validity period of the shareholders’ resolutions in relation to the Parent
Company Subscription and the authorisation granted to the Board will expire on
17 September 2022. The Board proposes to convene the extraordinary general
meeting and the class meetings for the shareholders to consider, among
others, each of the Extension Resolutions to extend the validity period of the
shareholders’ resolutions and the authorisation granted to the Board to deal
with and complete the Parent Company Subscription and the New H Shares
Issue for a further period of twelve (12) months from 18 September 2022 to 17
September 2023.

Each of the completion of the Parent Company Subscription and the new
H shares issue shall be subject to certain conditions precedent. For details,
please refer to the circulars of the Company dated 20 August 2020 and 21
September 2021. As of the date of this interim report, none of such conditions
precedent was satisfied or waived. The Company will notify the shareholders
and potential investors of the Company with the information on the progress
of the Parent Company Subscription and the new H shares issue in the future
(if necessary).

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

In the first half of 2022, the Group has actively conducted scientific analysis
and teased out the operational deficiencies or potential risks identified during
the course of work, in order to systematically organize, mitigate and monitor
potential risks and to build a governance environment with risks under control
and compliant operations.

In the second half of 2022, the Group will continue to carry out the “Promotion
Work over the Risk Management and Internal Control System”, further
optimise the framework and refine the schemes, and carry out this task as the
routine work of the Group. The Group will pay attention to, keep track of and
effectively resolve problems to lay a solid foundation for a healthy, rapid and
sustainable development of the Group in the future.
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No.
21

Names of risks

BRER

ol

Description of the key risk
BREREL

Counter measures taken
in the first half of 2022
TECCELYERYER

Effectiveness of risk-counter measures

BREHUR
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Operation risk - Core
safety risks

The core safety risks faced by the
airport are mainly bird strike risk,
aircraft damage risk and flight
zone construction management
risk. If there is a failure to
effectively drive birds away may it
result in collisions with aircrafts,
damage to aircrafts, and even
the risk of aerial catastrophe. If,
during the flight operation and
ground services process, there
is damage to the aircraft due to
crate deformation, equipment
failure and improper human
operation, it may cause economic
loss, flight delay or even
cancellation. If there is failure
to effectively manage relevant
personnel, vehicles and related
materials during the construction
and maintenance work in the
flight area of Meilan Airport, it
may increase the risks associated
with foreign objects and flight
area intrusion.

(1

(2)

(3)

(4)

Built a professional bird prevention team in the
airport to prevent and control bird strike risks by
further introducing personnel, upgrading bird repellent
equipment, strengthening personnel training and drills,
controlling the birds attraction factors in the field,
carrying out a general survey of bird conditions within
and outside, and increasing background analysis and
research;

Regularly conducted special training for aircraft security
personnel and inspected flight security operation, and
imposed penalty for violations; Organized coordination
meetings among various aircraft security units to solve
potential safety issues specifically; In addition, we
updated and improved the apron management manual
and established standardized operation manual to build
a comprehensive management system;

Strengthened foreign objects cleaning and inspection,
organized all units to carry out training on foreign
objects, revised and completed foreign objects
prevention management methods and work procedures
from the aspects of cultural construction, risk
assessment, merit point management, and safety
inspection, and improved the awareness on foreign
objects prevention of apron personnel; and

Ensured smooth communication between the
construction unit and the apron control tower during
the construction period. Conducted inspection on
the implementation of various safety measures at
the construction site in the flight area every day,
and strictly controlled the construction area and
construction time to prevent the risk of illegal intrusion
to the runway. The construction assessment system
for the flight area was optimised and the construction
supervision units and construction units were subject
to more stringent supervision and assessment.

In the first half of 2022, Meilan Airport took
various measures to comprehensively control
and strictly monitor and prevent each core safety
risk, and there were no aircraft scratching, illegal
intrusion to the runway and unsafe construction
in the flight area. Effectiveness of risk-counter
measures are set out below:

(1

(2)

()

Bird strike risk: in the first half the year,
the rate of bird strikes was 0.2 per
10,000 flights, which was lower than the
annual airport bird strike prevention and
management target set by the CAAC - the
rate of bird strikes in the airport duty area
should not exceed 0.5 per 10,000 flights for
the year;

Risk of aircraft damage: Through measures
such as the improvement of standardized
operation manuals, pilot qualification
checks, and the improvement of rules for
safeguarding aircraft space, there was no
unsafe incidents of aircraft scratching due
to the liability of Meilan Airport in the first
half of 2022; and

Risk of flight area construction
management: In the first half of 2022, there
were no unsafe incidents caused by illegal
intrusion to the runway and construction at
Meilan Airport.
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Counter measures taken

No. Names of risks Description of the key risk in the first half of 2022 Effectiveness of risk-counter measures
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Counter measures taken

No. Names of risks Description of the key risk in the first half of 2022 Effectiveness of risk-counter measures
FH  EBRER BREREL CECCELYERBER EREHYR

Compliance and
regulatory risk -
Pandemic risk

ARREE
Bk - %
Bk

Due to the impact of the
Pandemic, the risk of local
outbreaks of the Pandemic in
China still exists, and there
is a risk of the spread of the
Pandemic via international freight
flights. If adequate Pandemic
prevention measures are not
formulated or the Pandemic
prevention measures are not
implemented properly, it may lead
to an outbreak of the Pandemic
in the airport, which may in turn
affect the Company’s operation
revenue, reputation or result in
penalty imposed by regulatory
authorities.

REEYE @m%u%%r%m
RREARE BREERNRE
REERAR  BOAHERRH
MRERRREFA TN -
THBHBSLERE ENYE
ARREERN BERRIEE
EfRT

(1) Established an Pandemic prevention and control
headquarters, and formulated 17 Pandemic prevention
and control standards and systems, 19 work processes
and 10 emergency plans, to form a complete Pandemic
prevention standard system;

(2) In response to the Pandemic risk at internal customs,
checkpoint, Meilan Airport carried out comprehensive
and detailed risk prevention and control work from
the aspects of strengthening the management and
control of international freight personnel, reinforcing
the management and control of key groups in the
airport, enhancing the staff training and assessment,
enhancing the normalized disinfection work, boosting
the Pandemic prevention work of international
freight flights, and strengthening the supervision and
inspection for Pandemic prevention and control; and

(3) In response to the Pandemic risk at external customs
checkpoint, Meilan Airport established a flight security
process for Pandemic-involved areas and non-
Pandemic-involved areas and planned special security
areas. It coordinated with the airlines to strengthen
the guidance for passenger and frontline control,
implemented regional responsibility system, and carried
out passenger arrival inspection, nucleic acid testing
and other work. In addition, the Company set up a 24-
hour on-duty team for Pandemic prevention, organized,
for example, a number of company-level Pandemic
prevention and control drills and special drill seminars
to effectively improve the capability for emergency
response.

0 KRIRBEHEEES HE7EREHESENNE
19 TR 10BRSEE K — Emﬁm%fﬁ
EE%:
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In the first half of 2022, Meilan Airport made
every effort to safeguard the Pandemic
prevention and control work, and implemented
three major policy adjustments for Pandemic
prevention and control in a strict and rigorous
manner, achieving the double-zero goal of
"zero errors in prevention and control, and
zero complaints of service”, which has been
repeatedly recognised and commended by
the provincial and municipal leaders. The
effectiveness of the risk response are as follows:

(1) Conducted Pandemic prevention training
and learning assessments for over 150,000
people, and always maintained a state of
activation and smoothly handled a number
of emergencies;

(2) Enhanced the Intelligent Pandemic
Prevention system to transform “human
prevention” into “technical prevention”,
significantly shortening the average
clearance time for immunization clearance
verification, and improving service
efficiency; and

(3) Successfully secured the flights of
important commercial charters for
international passenger, such as the
national football team and the national table
tennis team, as well as international cargo
flights.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Description of the key risk
BREREL

Counter measures taken
in the first half of 2022
TECCELYERYER

ERENERE

il

Effectiveness of risk-counter measures

BREHUR

Compliance and
regulatory risks - Project
construction risk

ARREERR - TR
EER

During the expansion projects
and renovation of the airport,
any absence of strict control
over project expenses, quality or
construction period may lead to
an increase of project costs or
delay in construction period, or
even affect project quality.

EXRBSERNBHIRT &
RERTRXM TREERET
HERTEREER THeEn
IRRALFRETHER &5
FEIREE-

(1

(2)

(3)

(4)

(1)

Formulated internal management measures and
specified the approval process of tender control price
for infrastructure projects;

Clarified the selection process of project suppliers to
ensure compliance of the selection process of strategic
procurement units;

Strict control over the construction site during the
construction process (e.g. regular report on the
construction progress and the construction situation,
arrangement of supervisors to supervise the
construction site); and

Required the construction units to rectify for the
problems found during the completion inspection in a
timely manner, and signed on the acceptance form only
after the rectification has passed the inspection and
acceptance.

BHASEERE - ARERARRREHENERRE:

MERBMEARERR BRERREEMERER
al:

BIRRTHTHETERESE (NEHEREIER
BIBARER RHEREERIRG) R

RIBRRHEROHBERBTEL RBEY B
BRERRATAERNELRT

TE_FHHRE c BEXHEKREEROERAR

(1

(2)

(3)

(4)

The construction projects were established
in strict accordance with the Company's
rules and regulations, and the necessity
and feasibility of the projects were fully
demonstrated; the tender control price
was reasonably prepared and approved at
various levels, and there were no cases
where the tender control price did not meet
the market price or exceeded the project
establishment control price, and the cost
was under control;

The selection of constructions project
suppliers of Meilan Airport was carried out
in strict accordance with the Company's
rules and regulations and there were no
violations;

Through the implementation of the
supervision of the entire construction
process in the control area and
terminals, strengthened the degree of
safety inspection, and there was no
unsafe incidents happened during the
implementation of each project; and

Issued rectification notice for the problems
found in the completion inspection and the
construction units applied for acceptance
again after the rectification was completed
and there was no event of acceptance
without satisfactory rectification.
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PROSPECTS FOR THE SECOND HALF OF THE YEAR

In the first half of 2022, the economy experienced a heightened downward
pressure due to the impact of unexpected factors such as the Pandemic
rebound and the war between Russia and Ukraine. In line with the clear
requirement of “to stabilize the economy, to prevent the Pandemic and to
secure development”, the domestic economy efficiently bolstered Pandemic
prevention capabilities and facilitated economic and social development,
accelerated the progress of implementing various policies to stabilize the
economy, and achieved positive results. Hainan Province has launched a series
of policies to stabilize the economy and assist enterprises to alleviate their
difficulties, while the overall positive trend remains unchanged with remarkable
economic development highlights, but there are still challenges such as the
economy not recovering as expected. In order to implement the requirements
of the provincial Party Committee and the government of Hainan Province on
“efficiently bolstered Pandemic prevention capabilities and facilitated economic
and social development”, Hainan Province Department of Tourism, Culture,
Radio, Television and Sports further strengthened its analysis and assessment
of the tourism market on and off of the Island, and promptly launched the
“Unconventional Measures to Promote the Recovery and Revitalisation of
the Tourism Industry”, with the focus on launching thematic activities in the
tourism market inside and outside the province from June to August 2022 to
boost the tourism market by implementing precise relief, precise marketing,
and precise Pandemic prevention.

Currently, the risk of stagflation in the world economy is on the rise, the
policies of major economies are tending to tighten, external instability
and uncertainties have increased significantly, the impact of the domestic
Pandemic has not been completely eliminated, demand contraction is
intertwined with supply shocks, structural contradictions and cyclical problems
are superimposed, the operation of market players is still relatively difficult,
and the foundation for sustained economic recovery is unstable.

In the second half of 2022, the mainland will seize the critical period of
economic recovery by ensuring the effective implementation of a series of
policies to stabilize the economy, and continue to proceed with the “Six
Stabilizations” (i.e. “stabilization of employment”, “stabilization of finance”,
“stabilization of foreign trade”, “stabilization of foreign investment”,
“stabilization of investment” and “stabilization of expectations”) and
accomplish the “Six Guarantees” (i.e. “guarantee of employment rate”,
“guarantee of basic people’'s livelihood”, “guarantee of market players”,
“guarantee of food and energy security”, “guarantee of the stability of the
industrial chain and supply chain” and “guarantee of grassroots operations”),
in order to consolidate the foundation for a stable economic recovery and
ensure the economy running within a reasonable range. On the basis of the
prevention and control of the Pandemic, the Hainan government will further
facilitate the consumption recovery by continuously launching the “attracting
customers to the Island” campaign, and accelerating the construction of the
Hainan Free Trade Port and the establishment of the first wave of lockdown
operation projects. Meanwhile, the Hainan government will increase efforts to
help enterprises to alleviate their difficulties and reduce their operating costs,
with the launch of a three-year campaign to improve production safety.
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2022 is the year for the phase of consolidation and enhancement, and
the final year of the three-year action for special rectification of national
production safety. In conjunction with the work plan of the CAAC for the civil
aviation industry for the second half of 2022, the Group will strengthen the
maintenance of various facilities and equipment to maintain the bottom line
of aviation safety and prevent the occurrence of serious accidents. The Group
will ensure the absolute safety of aviation operations and people’s lives, to
uphold the concept of safe development, implement various safety measures,
enhance the awareness of the red lines, strengthen the bottom-line mindset,
continue to strengthen the management of the safety process, and strive for a
better investigation and management of hidden dangers.

The Group will also strictly follow the deployment of governments at all levels
for the second half of the year, and make every effort to improve operating
results and make up for the decline in the first half of the year. The Group will
relentlessly work on Pandemic prevention and control, guard the border against
the importation of cases, effectively implement regularized anti-Pandemic
measures to establish a robust Pandemic prevention command system and
Pandemic prevention protocols, improve the practical Pandemic prevention
and control abilities, and optimize the business mechanism of safeguarding
international freight flights. The Group will cooperate with provincial and
municipal governments, and coordinate airline, and other collaborators to
promote the Hainan's tourism market, while taking up social responsibility
and assisting merchants in the area of Meilan Airport to relieve their pressure,
strengthening the capacity of staff to improve corporate governance and
service standards, and achieve steady, efficient and integrated development.

INTERIM DIVIDENDS

The Board expected that, in the second half of 2022, the Company has a large
capital demand, mainly due to that the Phase Il Expansion Project has been
officially put into operation in December 2021, and the out-of-pocket costs
have increased significantly; and although the Phase Il Expansion Project has
been put into operation, the relevant construction has not been completed
and settled, and a large amount of capital will still be required in 2022 for the
payment of the construction. In view of the actual needs of the Company’s
future development capital, the Board does not recommend the payment of
interim dividend for the six months ended 30 June 2022.

MATERIAL LITIGATION OR ARBITRATION

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 5 January 2021,
Aero Infrastructure Holding Company Limited and the Company entered into
a subscription agreement in relation to the subscription of 200,000,000 New
H Shares (the “New H Shares Subscription Agreement”) on 29 September
2019. Aero Infrastructure Holding Company Limited (the “Claimant”), as
the claimant, filed an arbitration (the “Arbitration”) with the Hong Kong
International Arbitration Centre against the Company asserting allegations in
connection with the New H Shares Subscription Agreement.

As of the publication date of this interim report, the Claimant has submitted its
arbitration response and supporting documents and the Company is preparing
the second round of defense submissions and supporting documents with
its full effort. For details of the Arbitration, please refer to the Company's
announcement dated 5 January 2021.

Save as disclosed above, the Group had no other material litigation or
arbitration for the six months ended 30 June 2022.
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OTHER INFORMATION
AEEM

CHANGE OF DIRECTORS

The Board comprises eleven Directors. The changes in the duties of the
Directors during the six months ended 30 June 2022 and as of the publication
date of this interim report are as follows:

Mr. Wang Hexin ceased to be an executive Director with effect from 3 March
2022;

Mr. Qiu Guoliang succeeded Mr. Tu Haidong as a non-executive Director for a
term of three years with effect from 3 March 2022 and his appointment was
approved by the extraordinary general meeting held on 3 March 2022;

Mr. Li Zhiguo has been a non-executive Director for a term of three years
with effect from 3 March 2022 and his appointment was approved by the
extraordinary general meeting held on 3 March 2022;

Mr. Wu Jian succeeded Mr. Yuan Yubao as a non-executive Director for a
term of three years with effect from 3 March 2022 and his appointment was
approved by the extraordinary general meeting held on 3 March 2022;

The Company held the eighth meeting of the eighth session of the Board on
9 September 2022, at which the resolution in relation to the appointment of
Mr. Ren Kai in place of Mr. Yu Yan as an executive Director for a term of three
years was considered and approved. The appointment will be proposed at the
EGM for approval.

CHANGE OF SUPERVISORS

The supervisory committee of the Company comprises three supervisors (the
"Supervisors”). The changes in the duties of the Supervisors during the six
months ended 30 June 2022 and as of the publication date of this interim
report are as follows:

Mr. Zheng Yabo succeeded Ms. Liu Guiling as the staff representative
Supervisor with effect from 29 July 2022 for a term of three years.
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CHANGE OF SENIOR MANAGEMENT

During the six months ended 30 June 2022 and up to the date of publication of
this interim report, the changes in senior management were as follows:

Mr. Ren Kai succeeded Mr. Yu Yan as the chief financial officer of the
Company for a term of three years. His appointment was approved at the
eighth meeting of the eighth session of the Board held on 9 September 2022.

CHANGES OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS
AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES

Mr. Wang Hong, an executive Director, has been the Chairman of the Parent
Company since June 2022.

Mr. Yu Yan, an executive Director, has been the Deputy Director of the Finance
Department of Hainan Development Holdings Co., Ltd.* since June 2022.

Mr. Qiu Guoliang, a non-executive Director, has been the General Manager of
the Parent Company since June 2022 and ceased to be the Deputy General
Manager of the Parent Company.

Mr. Fung Ching, Simon, an independent non-executive Director, has been the
Chairman of the Audit Committee since 5 May 2022.

Mr. Ye Zheng, an independent non-executive Director, has been a member of
the Audit Committee since 5 May 2022.

Mr. Deng Tianlin, an independent non-executive Director, ceased to be a
member and the Chairman of the Audit Committee with effect from 5 May
2022.

Ms. Liu Guiling, a staff representative Supervisor, ceased to be the General
Manager of the Freight Department of the Company with effect from 1 July
2022, and ceased to be the staff representative Supervisor with effect from 29
July 2022.

Save as disclosed above, during the six months ended 30 June 2022 and as at
the date of this interim report, the Company is not aware of any other change
in information relating to the Directors, Supervisors or chief executives of the
Company that is required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the
Listing Rules.
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND
SUPERVISORS

The Company held the 2012 annual general meeting on 27 May 2013, where
the “Resolution in Relation to the Remuneration Packages for the Directors
and Supervisors of the Company in 2013" was considered and approved. [t
provided that the Directors and Supervisors nominated by connected party
shareholders would not enjoy allowance for their positions from the year of
2013, but may receive appropriate wages depending on their specific duties in
the Company. Other Directors and Supervisors will receive their remuneration
according to the remuneration package approved by the general meeting.

REMUNERATION OF COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Xing Zhoujin, being the company secretary of the Company nominated by
the connected party shareholder, does not enjoy any allowance for his position,
but will receive appropriate wages depending on his specific duties in the
Company.

SHARE CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at 30 June 2022, the total number of issued shares of the Company was
473,213,000, of which:

EERESHE

KRR -_E—=FRA-+tHEBHAMHN_-_ZT—=
FERRBFAGL BRUBBT(EREEAR
EE EE_T--FHRMAIRNRER) -HNEZ=ZF
——FR ABAEIFRIEANES EETH=E
REENES B RN BEAREBEELAR
AEEHEBBHEESHENTERH HEMES
EREREREASHENRMNARESHE -

NEAMEME
MEAEEEERAARHEETRRIEZHD AW
EOAEXMAENM R BREBEEERAQAE
EOABRSESHEEN TERY -

N
R-IE-—FRXA=Z1H AQRARZHITZARK
#473,213,0000% » HA -

Percentage to total

Number of shares issued shares

HE BT

B 4R 5 Bl

Domestic shares NE R 246,300,000 52 %
H shares Hx 226,913,000 48%
Total B 473,213,000 100%
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INTERESTS OF SUBSTANTIAL
SHAREHOLDERS IN SHARES

As at 30 June 2022, so far as is known to the Directors, Supervisors and chief
executive of the Company, the following persons (other than the Directors,
Supervisors or chief executive of the Company) had interests or short positions
in the shares and underlying shares of the Company which were required to be
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under section 336
of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO") (Chapter 571 of the Laws
of Hong Kong).

Domestic Shares
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Number of Percentage Percentage

ordinary to domestic to total issued

Name of shareholders Capacity shares shares issued share capital

HERT HERT

RRER =L EBERYUE RWERBDE BREEAH

Haikou Meilan International Airport Company Limited* (Note 1) Beneficial owner 237,500,000(L) 96.43% 50.19%

BAZBERESEREELF () BEREBA

Hainan Airport Industrial Investment Co., Ltd.* (Note 1) Interest of controlled corporations 237,500,000(L) 96.43% 50.19%
BRESEEREBRAF (M) R VNG £y

Hainan Development Holdings Co., Ltd.* (Note 1) Interest of controlled corporations 237,500,000(L) 96.43% 50.19%
BREAERERERAR (F1) et VNG £
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H Shares HAx
Percentage to
Number of Percentage to total issued
Name of shareholders Type of interests ordinary shares  H shares issued share capital
HERT HERT
BREEE BEER EBREAE HRBE 2 BREFAL
ARC Capital Holdings Limited (Note 2) Interest of controlled corporations 32,788,500(L) 14.45% 6.93%
ARC Capital Holdings Limited (F{52) S IUNGIL £+
ARC Capital Partners Limited (Note 2) Investment manager 32,788,500(L) 14.45% 6.93%
ARC Capital Partners Limited (Fff552) KERE
Pacific Alliance Asia Opportunity Fund L.P. (Note 2) Interest of controlled corporations 32,788,500(L) 14.45% 6.93%
Pacific Alliance Asia Opportunity Fund L.P. (Ff5£2) R NG
Pacific Alliance Equity Partners Limited (Note 2) Interest of controlled corporations 32,788,500(L) 14.45% 6.93%
Pacific Alliance Equity Partners Limited (F{552) S IUNGL §:
Pacific Alliance Group Asset Management Limited (Note 2) Investment manager 32,788,500(L) 14.45% 6.93%
Pacific Alliance Group Asset Management Limited (Ff{32) KEKE
PAG Holdings Limited (Note 2) Interest of controlled corporations 32,788,500(L) 14.45% 6.93%
PAG Holdings Limited (fft££2) S I UNGIL £
Pacific Alliance Group Limited (Note 2) Interest of controlled corporations 32,788,500(L) 14.45% 6.93%
Pacific Alliance Group Limited (Pf32) SR NG
Pacific Alliance Investment Management Limited (Note 2) Interest of controlled corporations 32,788,500(L) 14.45% 6.93%
Pacific Alliance Investment Management Limited ([ £52) XEHARER
Walden Ventures Limited (Note 2) Beneficial owner 32,788,500(L) 14.45% 6.93%
Walden Ventures Limited (i 352) EREAA
UBS Group AG (Note 3) Interest of controlled corporations 29,575,636 (L) 13.03% 6.25%
UBS Group AG ([17£3) SRr VNG £
Aspex Management (HK) Limited (Note 4) Investment manager 24,590,000 (L) 10.84% 5.20%
Aspex Management (HK) Limited (}f5£4) BB IE
JPMorgan Chase & Co. (Note 5) Interest of controlled corporations 3,505,085 (L) 1.54% 0.74%
JPMorgan Chase & Co. ([t 55) S INGIL £ 2,979,085 (S) 1.31% 0.63%
Person having a security interest 6,662,000 (L) 2.94% 1.41%
in shares
HROBEREEZNAL
Approved lending agent 3,683,844 (P) 1.62% 0.78%
BARHRIEA
Matthews International Capital Management, LLC (Note 6) Investment manager 11,437,000 (L) 5.04% 2.42%

Matthews International Capital Management, LLC (}f{16)

BRELE
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Notes:

Haikou Meilan International Airport Company Limited* is established in the PRC
and is the controlling shareholder of the Company. According to the disclosure of
interest filed on the website of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, Hainan Airport
Industrial Investment Co., Ltd.* held 46.81% interest in Haikou Meilan International
Airport Company Limited, and Hainan Development Holdings Co., Ltd.* held
56% interest in Hainan Airport Industrial Investment Co., Ltd. Therefore, Hainan
Development Holdings Co., Ltd.* and Hainan Airport Industrial Investment Co., Ltd
were deemed to be interested in 237,500,000 domestic shares of the Company
held by Haikou Meilan International Airport Company Limited.

According to the disclosure of interest filed on the website of the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange, (i) PAG Holdings Limited held 99.17% interest in Pacific Alliance Group
Limited; (ii) Pacific Alliance Group Limited held 90% interest in Pacific Alliance
Investment Management Limited; (iii) Pacific Alliance Investment Management
Limited held 52.563% interest in Pacific Alliance Equity Partners Limited; (iv)
Pacific Alliance Equity Partners Limited held 100% interest in ARC Capital
Partners Limited; (v) ARC Capital Partners Limited was deemed to be interested in
32,788,500 H Shares of the Company in long position as investment manager; (vi)
ARC Capital Holdings Limited is a corporation controlled by ARC Capital Partners
Limited; (vii) ARC Capital Holdings Limited held 46.67% interest in Walden Ventures
Limited, and Walden Ventures Limited was interested in 32,788,500 H Shares
of the Company in long position; (viii) Pacific Alliance Investment Management
Limited held 100% interest in Pacific Alliance Group Asset Management Limited;
(ix) Pacific Alliance Group Asset Management Limited was deemed to be interested
in 32,788,500 H Shares of the Company in long position as investment manager;
(x) Pacific Alliance Asia Opportunity Fund L.P. is a corporation controlled by
Pacific Alliance Group Asset Management Limited; and (xi) Pacific Alliance Asia
Opportunity Fund L.P. held 36.67% interest in Walden Ventures Limited, and
Walden Ventures Limited was interested in 32,788,500 H shares of the Company in
long position.

According to the disclosure of interest filed on the website of the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange, UBS Group AG held 100% interest in (i) UBS AG; (ii) UBS Asset
Management (Singapore) Ltd; (i) UBS Fund Management (Luxembourg) S.A.;
(iv) UBS Asset Management (Deutschland) GmbH; (v) UBS Fund Management
(Switzerland) AG; (vi) UBS Switzerland AG; (vii) UBS Asset Management
(Americas) Inc.; (viii) UBS Asset Management (Hong Kong) Ltd; and (ix) UBS Asset
Management Switzerland AG. Accordingly, UBS Group AG was deemed to be
interested in 7,930,938, 541,300, 19,953,100, 46,000, 40,000, 413,298, 3,000,
292,000 and 356,000 H shares of the Company held by the above companies
respectively in long position.
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4. According to the disclosure of interest filed on the website of the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange, Aspex Management (HK) Limited was deemed to be interested in
24,590,000 H shares of the Company in long position as investment manager.

5. According to the disclosure of interest filed on the website of the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange, (i) JPMorgan Chase & Co. held 100% interest in JPMorgan Chase Bank,
National Association and JPMorgan Chase Holdings LLC; (ii) JPMorgan Chase
Bank, National Association held 100% interest in JPMORGAN CHASE BANK,
N.A. — LONDON BRANCH and J.P. Morgan International Finance Limited; (iii) J.P.
Morgan International Finance Limited held 100% interest in J.P. Morgan SE and J.P.
MORGAN CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED; (iv) J.P. MORGAN CAPITAL HOLDINGS
LIMITED held 100% interest in J.P. MORGAN SECURITIES PLC; and (v) JPMorgan
Chase Holdings LLC held 100% interest in J.P. Morgan Broker-Dealer Holdings Inc.;
and (vi) J.P. Morgan Broker-Dealer Holdings Inc. held 100% interest in J.P. Morgan
Securities LLC. Accordingly, JPMorgan Chase & Co. was deemed to be interested
in the 3,683,844, 4,000, 9,411,085 and 752,000 H shares of the Company in long
position held by JPMORGAN CHASE BANK, N.A. - LONDON BRANCH, J.P. Morgan
SE, J.P. MORGAN SECURITIES PLC and J.P. Morgan Securities LLC respectively,
and to be interested in 2,959,085 and 20,000 H shares of the Company in short
position held by J.P. MORGAN SECURITIES PLC and J.P. Morgan Securities LLC
respectively.

6. According to the disclosure of interest filed on the website of the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange, Matthews International Capital Management, LLC was deemed to be
interested in 11,437,000 H shares of the Company in long position as investment
manager.

7. (L) and (S) represent long position and short position respectively.

Save as disclosed above, as of 30 June 2022, so far as known to the Directors,
Supervisors and chief executive of the Company, there was no other person
(other than the Directors, Supervisors or chief executive of the Company) who
had any interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company which were required to be recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO.

INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS
AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE IN SHARES

As at 30 June 2022, no Directors, Supervisors or chief executive of the
Company had any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO), which were required to be recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company under section 352 of the SFO, or
required to be notified to the Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (the “Model Code"”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.
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THE RIGHTS OF DIRECTORS AND
SUPERVISORS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

For the six months ended 30 June 2022, neither the Company nor any of
its subsidiaries had entered into any arrangement to enable the Directors or
Supervisors to acquire any benefit by means of the acquisition of shares in,
or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate, and none of the
Directors or Supervisors or their respective spouses or children under the age
of 18 has been granted any rights to subscribe for shares in, or debentures of,
the Company or any other body corporate or have exercised any of such rights.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

For the six months ended 30 June 2022, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the listed securities of
the Company.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee has, together with the management of the Company,
reviewed the interim results and the unaudited condensed consolidated interim
financial information (including the accounting standards and practices adopted
by the Group) of the Group for the six months ended 30 June 2022.

DETAILS OF COMPLIANCE WITH RULE 3.10(1),
RULE 3.10(2) AND RULE 3.21 OF THE LISTING
RULES

As of 30 June 2022, there were four independent non-executive Directors
in the Board. As of 30 June 2022, the Audit Committee comprised three
independent non-executive Directors, including one personnel with appropriate
professional qualifications of accounting and the membership of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding Directors’ and
Supervisors’ securities transactions on terms no less exacting than the
required standard set out in the Model Code. Having made specific enquiry to
all Directors and Supervisors, the Company confirmed that, all Directors and
Supervisors have complied with the Model Code and the code of conduct of
the Company regarding Directors’ and Supervisors’ securities transactions for
the six months ended 30 June 2022.
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COMPLIANCE WITH CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company has been in compliance with all the rules prescribed by the
China Securities Regulatory Commission and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange,
as well as requirements of other regulatory bodies. The Company has applied
the principles as set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code"”)
as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules and established a series of
corporate governance systems in accordance with relevant requirements to
continuously improve the corporate governance structure.

Pursuant to the code provision B.2.2 of the CG Code, every Director, including
those appointed for a specific term, should be subject to retirement by rotation
at least once every three years. According to the articles of association of the
Company (the “Articles of Association”), the Directors and Supervisors shall
hold term of office of three years from the date of election, and may stand for
re-election upon the expiry of their term of office.

The term of office of Mr. Liao Hongyu, an independent Supervisor, has
expired on 2 June 2022. As the selection of a successor to the independent
Supervisor is still in progress, the Company failed to complete the re-election/
election before the expiry of the term of office of the above Supervisor. Before
the completion of the re-election/election, such Supervisors will continue to
perform their corresponding duties.

In accordance with code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code, the responsibilities of
the chairman and chief executive officer of a listed issuer should be separate
and should not be performed by the same individual. Mr. Wang Hong serving
as both the Chairman and the President deviates from code provision C.2.1 of
the CG Code.

Notwithstanding the deviation from code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code,
given that the Company has clearly set out in writing the respective duties
of the Chairman and the President (i.e. the duties of the General Manager
as stipulated in the Articles of Association) and that Mr. Wang Hong, as the
President, is familiar with the business of the Company and has superior
knowledge and experience of the business of the Company, the Board is
therefore of the view that Mr. Wang Hong serving as both Chairman and
President has the benefit of ensuring consistent leadership with the Company
and allow for more efficient overall business development strategic planning
for the Company. The Board believes that the balance of power and authority
for the present arrangement will not be impaired and this structure enables the
Company to make and implement decisions in a timely and effective manner.
Notwithstanding this, the Board will review the structure from time to time
and consider appropriate actions to be taken where appropriate.

Save for the deviation disclosed above, for the six months ended 30 June
2022, the Company had complied with the other code provisions of the CG
Code and met with all reasonable governance and disclosure requirements.
The Company will continue to improve its corporate governance and enhance
its transparency to shareholders.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

As at the date of this interim report, the members of the Board include:

Executive Directors Independent Non-executive Directors
Wang Hong (Chairman and President) Fung Ching, Simon

Wang Zhen Deng Tianlin

Yu Yan George F Meng

Xing Zhoujin Ye Zheng

Non-executive Directors

Qiu Guoliang

Li Zhiguo

Wu Jian

By order of the Board

Hainan Meilan International Airport Company Limited*
Wang Hong

Chairman and President

Haikou, the People’'s Republic of China
26 August 2022

For identification purposes only

This interim report is prepared in English and Chinese.

In the event of any inconsistency between the two versions, the Chinese version shall prevail.

OTHER INFORMATION
HE B

EEg

RARBMREEH EFSHUATATAR

HITEE BUIIBTEE
T R(EFERFHE) B AE
T & B R
B 7 HZER
AL ® K
FHITEE

BE R

&= EH

2 f

EEEEM
BEEHEREEROERARA

%

EFRFHE

PEARKFE - BOW
2 NAZ+XH

AR A R A E AR
FEH P IEX A FEIF L B BER AP XK BE -

TE_FHHRE c BEXHEKREEROERAR

41



CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY BALANCE SHEETS
SR RARIEERER

As at 30 June 2022 202246304
(All amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated) (¥ FI;¥875) - & B & (7 BA K ¥or)

30 June 31 December 30 June 31 December
2022 2021 2022 2021
2022 20215 20224 20214
6A30R 123310 6H30R 127318
Consolidated Consolidated Company Company
=X Gl Ad A
Note (Unaudited) (Audited) (Unaudited) (Audited)
ASSETS BE M (REEE) (fe &5t (REHE) (f&zat)
Current assets hBEE
Cash at bank and on hand &S 4(1) A1) 125,145,255 212,123,485 82,097,659 100,728,584
Financial assets held for trading RHUEHEE 21,444,074 26,834,409 9,070,464 10,678,081
Accounts receivable FEWER R 4(2) 19(2) 273,823,133 309,474,896 411,596,038 432,734,662
Prepayments BRFE 8,499,560 10,080,773 7,858,459 8,116,651
Other receivables H ot RN 4(3) 79(3) 48,685,212 54,925,229 58,597,524 78,936,913
Inventories TE 978,097 627,642 208,996 -
Other current assets HunsEE 9,184,037 8,510,729 - -
Total current assets RBEESS 487,759,368 622,577,163 569,429,140 631,194,891
Non-current assets FRBEE
Long-term equity investments RERIERE 4(4), 14(1)
74) - +79(1) 8,349,513 12,848,969 23,549,513 28,048,969
Other non-current financial assets HEtFErHemiE 48,862,156 - 6,607,914 -
Investment properties BEURE 4(5) 9(5)  1,614,017,197  1,639,860,833  1,614,017,197  1,639,860,833
Fixed assets EEEE 4(6) 9(6)  7,396,738,914  7,523,860,760  7,381,782,249  7,5610,183,407
Right-of-use assets FREEE 4(7) 79(7) 110,225,173 136,102,636 97,195,185 114,385,989
Intangible assets BYEE 4(8) 79(8)  1,058,482,760  1,066,972,506  1,058,287,678  1,066,757,334
Long-term prepaid expenses REGEER 3,806,605 4,276,037 3,636,637 4,071,269
Deferred tax assets EEMEHEE 65,248,549 82,246,998 55,502,591 77,868,748
Other non-current assets HtwEnsEE 46,617,476 46,601,425 46,617,476 46,601,425
Total non-current assets FRBEEAT 10,352,348,343  10,612,770,164  10,287,196,440 10,487,777,974
TOTAL ASSETS BEA 10,840,107,711  11,135,347,327  10,856,625,580 11,118,972,865
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CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY BALANCE SHEETS
stk RRIBERER

As at 30 June 2022 20224 6/30H
(All amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated) (& # FI,£ 875} - & 888 7 BA K ¥or)

30 June 31 December 30 June 31 December
2022 2021 2022 2021
2022% 20214 20224 20214
6A30H 12A318 6A30H 12R31H
Consolidated Consolidated Company Company
&bt A A8 N
Note (Unaudited) (Audited) (Unaudited) (Audited)
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY SERER ir3 (REEF) (fe &5t (REHE) (EE3T)
Current liabilities FEEE
Short-term borrowings REER 4(9) 79(9) 20,000,000 - 20,000,000 -
Accounts payable JEFHR 3R 4(10) 7(10) 330,901,701 344,481,547 277,660,820 288,788,984
Advances from customers BU B 29,734,666 24,514,155 5,094,478 3,440,810
Contract liabilities ARAE 9,762,962 26,429,947 9,742,875 26,429,947
Employee benefits payable JE £ 58 T % T 30,688,764 61,333,318 28,148,708 55,656,697
Taxes payable EXHE 4(11) 79(11) 413,334,154 408,684,554 410,514,759 406,503,592
Other payables HiEAR 4(12) /9(12)  2,474,766,891  2,617,621,949  2,505,612,654  2,664,479,793
Other current liabilities HtrEaE 3,171,980 4,171,396 3,170,172 4,171,396
Non-current liabilities due within one year ~ —# RIS FREEF 4(13) 9(13)  2,777,625,349  2,798,330,539  2,741,874,027  2,751,772,732
Total current liabilities FREBEEAT 6,089,986,467  6,285,567,405  6,001,818,493  6,201,243,951
Non-current liabilities krBEE
Lease liabilities HEAE 4(14) 7(14) 8,891,943 65,266,267 8,891,943 61,372,839
Long-term payables REERR 4(15) 19(15) 56,996,702 60,167,166 31,128,973 33,726,179
Deferred income B E 45,142,222 46,558,889 45,142,222 46,558,889
Long-term employee benefits payable REENBIEH 60,000 141,860 60,000 141,860
Deferred tax liabilities EEREHAE 2,093,690 989,853 - -
Other non-current liabilities =k ER=N 4(16) 73(16) 96,335,810 110,587,014 9,252,060 14,125,014
Total non-current liabilities FRBABET 209,520,367 283,711,049 94,475,198 155,924,781
Total liabilities B4 6,299,506,834  6,569,278,454  6,096,293,691  6,357,168,732
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CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY BALANCE SHEETS
etk ARIEERER

As at 30 June 2022 2022465304

(All amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated) (% FI;F875) - & B E (7 BA R ¥or)

30 June 31 December 30 June 31 December

2022 2021 2022 2021

2022% 20214 20224 20214

6A307 128318 6A307 12R31H

Consolidated Consolidated Company Company

=X A A8 A

Note (Unaudited) (Audited) (Unaudited) (Audited)

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY EERER M (REEE) (fe &5t (REHE) (f&zat)

Shareholders’ equity RER#ER

Share capital BN 473,213,000 473,213,000 473,213,000 473,213,000

Capital surplus BADE 4(17) 19(17) 819,661,947 819,661,947 699,484,654 699,484,654

Surplus reserve b YN 246,394,231 246,394,231 246,394,231 246,394,231

Other comprehensive loss Hiir A EE (19,524,487) (19,524,487) - -

Retained earnings RAEEFH 4(18) 73(18)  3,002,054,576  3,013,842,700  3,341,240,004  3,342,712,248
Total equity attributable to BEREATARR

shareholders of the Company BEas 4521,799,267  4,533,587,391  4,760,331,889  4,761,804,133

Minority interests DYREE R 18,801,610 32,481,482 - -

Total equity BRRERET 4,540,600,877  4,566,068,873  4,760,331,889  4,761,804,133

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY BERERAE 10,840,107,711  11,135,347,327  10,856,625,580 11,118,972,865

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

Legal representative:
PEEEA

Wang Hong

E

Principal in charge of accounting:
FESHITIFHEERA -

Yu Yan
BT

BB B MR E RSP B RER AR -

Head of accounting department:

i HEREA -
Tian Qingquan
HER
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CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY INCOI\/IE STATEI\/IENTS
R INNEIPIEF

For the six months ended 30 June 2022 ét 2202246 /30 H 1F618 A A
(All amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated) ([ # FI,£ 875} + & 888 (7 BA K ¥or)

Six months ended 30 June

HZ6A30H L6/ A
2022 2021 2022 2021
2022 20218 2022 20215
Consolidated Consolidated Company Company
&t =X | N
Note (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
Item EH His# (REET) (REE3) (REET) (REFz)
1. Revenue - EERA 4(19), 14(2)
719) - +512) 622,633,880 893,983,277 553,731,129 778,499,261
Less: Cost of sales B BERR 4(19), 14(2)
79(19) + +55(2) (518,636,648) (399,158,229) (431,043,697) (315,981,087)
Taxes and surcharges BeRmm (35,828,067) (15,246,387) (35,633,156) (14,773,951)
Selling and distribution expenses HEER 4(19), 14(2)
719+ 59(2) (2,134,534) (2,464,150) - -
General and administrative expenses EEER 4(19), 14(2)
79(19) « +052) (35,460,471) (45,026,421) (24,474,619) (31,038,276)
Financial expenses HHBER 4(20) 19(20) (48,393,195) (20,479,016 (48,260,964) (20,017,733)
Including: ~Interest expenses Hi:fI88 (48,861,896) (20,589,984) (48,429,619) (20,106,340)
Interest income %IJEJI&U\ 689,662 495,736 303,996 314,515
Add:  Other income JiIE:R A 15,377,319 8,624,121 13,432,761 7,170,928
Investment income/(loss) REWE/ (BB 4(21) 59(21) 19,383,504 (7,938) 12,201,702 (7,938)
Including: Investment loss on associates Hea: ﬁﬁﬁéﬁ%é‘\]
REBX (4,499,456) (7,938) (4,499,456) (7,938)
Gains or losses on changes in fair value MrEEZYER (5,390,335) - (1,607,617) -
Credit impairment losses ERAERE (1,604,411) (9,314,280 (237,568) (5,243,569)
Losses on disposal of assets BERERX (240,408) (236,589) (240,408) (236,589)
2. Operating profit ZCBERE 9,706,634 410,674,388 37,867,563 398,371,046
Add:  Non-operating income m:EEMEA 290,159 835,100 268,728 513,841
Less: Non-operating expenses W (17,362,503) (174) (17,242,378) -
3. Total (loss)/profit = (FB)/fBeE (7,365,710) 411,509,314 20,893,913 398,884,887
Less: Income tax expenses MG HER 4(22) Fi(22) (18,102,286) (62,033,989) (22,366,157) (60,416,335)
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CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY INCOME STATEMENTS
R RAIFER

(All amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise srared} (BR1FFI RSN ﬁﬁi/ﬁ&%/ﬁﬁ#i}

Six months ended 30 June

B Z6A30H L6fER
2022 2021 2022 2021
20225 20215 2022F 2021%
Consolidated Consolidated Company Company
&t At AR N
Note (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
Item A His# (REE:T) (REZH) (REE:T) (RigH:)
4. Net (loss)/profit R (EE) /A ﬂ (25,467,996) 349,475,325 (1,472,244) 338,468,552
Classified by continuity of operations R A
Net (loss)/profit from continuing operations SEAEF Eﬁa / M (25,467,996 349,475,325 (1,472,244) 338,468,552
Net profit from discontinued operations KIEERERA - - - -
Classified by ownership of the equity EIMERGBAE
Net (loss)/profit attributable to shareholders of BENERARRNF
the Company (BB) /3 (11,788,124) 345,356,411 (1,472,244) 338,468,552
Minority interests PYRRER (13,679,872) 4,118,914 - -
5. Other comprehensive income, net of tax I EMRAUNENBATE - - - -
6. Total comprehensive (loss)/income ~GE(BR)/RWESE (25,467,996) 349,475,325 (1,472,244) 338,468,552
Attributable to shareholders of the Company RENEQAIRENGS
(B&) /Wsis (11,788,124 345,356,411 (1,472,244) 338,468,552
Attributable to minority interests ZERVERENEA
(BB Mzas (13,679,872) 4118914 - -
7. (Losses)/Earnings per share t SR(ER) i
Basic (losses)/earnings per share (RMB Yuan) ARGk (5B) s
(AR%7T) 4(23) 19(23) (0.02) 0.73  Not applicable Not applicable
TER TER
Diluted (losses)/earnings per share (RMB Yuan) RRER(58) ki
(ARET) 4(23) 19(23) (0.02) 0.73  Not applicable Not applicable
TEA TER
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements. B ERRM T A BREROEXE S
Legal representative: Pr/na'pa/ in charge of accounting: Head of accounting department:
PEBEA FESIHIIEHEERA - S EEB RN -
Wang Hong Yu Yan Tian Qingquan
2P BE HER
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CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY CASH FLOW STATEMENTS
AN

For the six months ended 30 June 2022 #£20224%6/530H 1618/ 4
(All amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated) ([ # FI,£ 875} + & 888 (7 BA K ¥or)

Six months ended 30 June

HZ68300 6% A
2022 2021 2022 2021
20225 20215 2022 20215
Consolidated Consolidated Company Company
&l aft P 27
Note (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
it (REE3) (RiEE:) (REEEH) (REFH)
1. Cash flows from operating activities - BETHELNELTE
Cash received from sales of goods or rendering of services  EER R » BALKKIHBES 695,534,085 894,226,134 632,085,247 785,682,501
Cash received relating to other operating activities WEEpEREEHERNES 120,290,712 145,538,828 147,483,199 143,179,835
Sub-total of cash inflows from operating activities BEEHRSRANG 815,824,797 1,039,764,962 779,568,446 928,862,336
Cash paid for goods and services BEBQ EXSBxANES (194,728,490) (162,054, 749) (150,930,602) 137,459,832
Cash paid to and on behalf of employees IHRBTINRABRIZMNRS (185,556,482) (168,544,913) (130,961,543) 113,321,089)
Payments of taxes and surcharges XANEEHRE (57,297,515) (47,403,437) (51,555,701) (43,014,844)
Cash paid relating to other operating activities IREREEEEDARNG S (187,230,202) (255,448 442) (221,775,822) (252,367,610)
Sub-total of cash outflows from operating activities ~ £ZEBREEFHH )it (624,812,689) (633,451,541) (555,223,668) (546,163,375)
Net cash flows from operating activities LETHELNASRETE 4290
Ji(25)fa) 191,012,108 406,313,421 224,344,778 382,698,961
2. Cash flows used in investing activities CRETHERNELTE

Net cash received from disposal of fixed assets REETAENENESFE 189,319 10,191 189,193 -
Sub-total of cash inflows from investing activities REZBRSRANG 189,319 10,191 189,193 -

Cash paid to acquire and construct fixed assets and BEETEENLNRGEE
other long-term assets Fablkika (98,450,410) (88,393,697) (98,081,103) (86,336,524)
Sub-total of cash outflows from investing activities REZBRERE Mo (98,450,410) (88,393,697) (98,081,103) (86,336,524
Net cash flows from investing activities REZBELNEERERE (98,261,091) (88,383,506) (97,891,910) 86,336,524)
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CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY CASH FLOW STATEMENTS

BHMARRERER

For the six months ended 30 June 2022 & £202246/30H 1-618 7 HifE]
(All amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated) (% FI;F875) - & B E (7 BA R ¥or)

Six months ended 30 June

#Z6A30A t6fE A
2022 2021 2022 2021
20225 20215 2022 20215
Consolidated Consolidated Company Company
&l aft Ad 7]
Note (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
k3 (REES) (REFH) (REE) (RIEE:)
3. Cash flows used in financing activities = EETHERNESTE
Cash received relating to other financing activities KHEhBEEEHERNTS 20,000,000 - 20,000,000 -
Sub-total of cash inflows from BEEBRERANG
financing activities 20,000,000 - 20,000,000 -
Cash payments for interest expenses BRFIEZRNES (94,991,646) (48,157,200) (94,991,646) (48,157,200)
Cash paid relating to other financing activities INENEEREHEREN RS (70,076,476) 10,930,692) (70,076,476) 10,687,528)
Sub-total of cash outflows from BEEBRERA G
financing activities (165,068,122) (69,087,892) (165,068,122) (58,844,728)
Net cash flows from financing activities EETHELNESTERE (145,068,122) (59,087,892) (145,068,122) (58,844,728
4. Effect of foreign exchange rate changes on mEXZBURLRACEEN
cash and cash equivalents Hes - - - -
5. Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash IBERBSSENFHY)/ 4(25)(b)
equivalents EmE Zi25)(b) (52,317,105) 258,842,023 (18,615,254) 237,517,709
Add: Cash and cash equivalents at the m:BNRERALZEN
beginning of the period B$E 177,462,360 257,683,611 100,712,913 142,832,765
6. Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period ~ - HREERBALSENHE 125,145,255 516,525,634 82,097,659 380,350,474

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

Legal representative:
PFEEEA -

Wang Hong

E
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Principal in charge of accounting:
FEEIIFEMNERA -

Yu Yan

BE

B BHRRMERMBRROERELD -

Head of accounting department:
i HEREA -
Tian Qingquan
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

IR o B E) K

For the six months ended 30 June 2022 #£20224%6/530H 1618/ 4

(All amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated) ([ # FI,£ 875} + & 888 (7 BA K ¥or)

Equity attributable to shareholders of the Company

BERALARNRRER
Other Total
Share Capital Surplus  comprehensive Retained Minority  shareholders’
Note capital surplus reserve loss earnings interests equity
Item %R Wi R& ERDR BYNE HESAEE  AAEAR JERREE RRERSH
Unaudited: REEt
Balance at 1 January 2021 01F1 1A BABE 473,213,000 819,661,947 246,394,231 (19,524,487) 2,248711,127 42,061,708  3,810,517,526
Movements for the six months #Z22021%6A30A 68 A
ended 30 June 2021 HEEHZBE
Total comprehensive income FaknEE
Net profit pegilel - - - - 345,356,411 4118914 349,475,325

Other comprehensive income

Rt AlE - -

Total comprehensive income GRlaREAH - - - - 345366411 4118914 349,475,325
Balance at 30 June 2021 2021568300 B R4 473,213,000 819,661,947 246,394,231 (19,524,487)  2,594,067,538 46,180,622  4,159,992,851
Balance at 1 January 2022 02F1 1A BABE 473,213,000 819,661,947 246,394,231  (19,524,487) 3,013,842,700 32,481,482 4,566,068,873
Movements for the six months §§2022$6ﬁl30 A6 A

ended 30 June 2022 HELHLEE

Total comprehensive loss i? ERES

Net loss BER - - - - (1,788,124)  (13,679,872)  (25,467,996)
Other comprehensive income EfizalE - - - - - - _

Total comprehensive loss EABRBEEAH - - - - (11,788,124)  (13,679,872)  (25,467,996)

Balance at 30 June 2022 20226300 BRHE 473,213,000 819,661,947 246,394,231 (19,524,487) 3,002,054,576 18,801,610  4,540,600,877

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

Legal representative:
PFEEEA -

Wang Hong

EX

Principal in charge of accounting:

FEEHITIFIEEA -
Yu Yan
BT

BB B MR E RSP B REROARE D -

Head of accounting department:
i HIEREA -

Tian Qingquan

HER
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COMPANY STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS" EQUITY

NGl L

For the six months ended 30 June 2022 & £202246/30H 1-618 7 HifE]

(All amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated) (B % 5 8A5) » & E 7 BA R H¥T)
Other Total
Share Capital Surplus  comprehensive Retained  shareholders’
Note capital surplus reserve loss earnings equity
Item HAE Vi3 g N BENAE HUSAFE FABAE RREZAH
Unaudited: RERE
Balance at 1 January 2021 20211 1R 85 473,213,000 819,661,947 246,394,231 (19,524,487)  2,435,579,139  3,955,323,830
Movements for the six months EF202156A30A L6 A
ended 30 June 2021 HEEH2BE
Total comprehensive income FakEEE
Net profit EFE - - - - 338,468,552 338,468,552
Other comprehensive income Hivfm A s - - - - - -
Total comprehensive income GakEBEaH - - - - 338468552 338468552
Balance at 30 June 2021 202165300 B REA5E 473,213,000 819,661,947 246,394,231 (19,524,487)  2,774,047,691  4,293,792,382
Balance at 1 January 2022 2022F1R1AHNHE 473,213,000 699,484,654 246,394,231 - 3,342,712,248  4,761,804,133
Movements for the six months B 22022564300 LL6fE A
ended 30 June 2022 HELHEBE
Total comprehensive loss FAERER
Net loss RER - - - - (1,472,244) (1,472,244)
Other comprehensive income Bz alaE - - - - - -
Total comprehensive loss GABBEEAH - - - - (1,472,244) (1,472,244)
Balance at 30 June 2022 202256 R30A HRBE 473,213,000 699,484,654 246,394,231 - 3,341,240,004  4,760,331,889

BB IRRM TR IF IR MAERE D

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

Legal representative: Pr/'nc/pa/ in charge of accounting: Head of accounting department:

PREEA - FTERIFTIFHEEA - BIEBRAEN
Wang Hong Yu Yan Tian Qingquan
BN B= HER
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 ¥ Ak I 5t

For the six months ended 30 June 2022 & 2202246130 H 1618 5 #[E]

(All amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated) (& # 5t 875) - & 888 7 BA K ¥or)

GENERAL INFORMATION

Hainan Meilan International Airport Company Limited (hereinafter
referred to as the “Company”) was established as a joint stock company
with limited liability in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") on
28 December 2000. The registered address and the address of the
headquarters of the Company is in Haikou City, Hainan Province, the
PRC. The Company’s shares were listed on the main board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on 18 November 2002. The Company
and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group"”) are mainly engaged in the
operation of the Meilan Airport ("Meilan Airport') and certain ancillary
commercial businesses at Haikou City, Hainan Province, the PRC. The
parent company of the Company is Haikou Meilan International Airport
Co., Ltd. ("Haikou Meilan"), an enterprise established in the PRC with
limited liability.

HNA Group Co., Ltd (“HNA Group"”) was formerly a significant
shareholder of Haikou Meilan. In the year of 2021, HNA Group and its
certain related parties have entered into bankruptcy restructuring, which
comprised Hainan Airport Infrastructure Co., Ltd. (“Hainan Airport”,
formerly known as “HNA Infrastructure Investment Group Co., Ltd"”) and
its 20 subsidiaries (“Hainan Airport Restructuring”), Hainan Airlines
Holding Co., Ltd. (“Hainan Airlines”) and its 10 subsidiaries (“Hainan
Airlines Restructuring”) and the substantial consolidated restructuring
of HNA Group and its related companies totalling 321 companies ("HNA
Group Substantial Consolidated Restructuring”). Hainan Airport
Restructuring and Hainan Airlines Restructuring were completed on
31 December 2021, while the HNA Group Substantial Consolidated
Restructuring was completed on 24 April 2022. The above restructurings
and their impacts have been taken into account when preparing these
financial statements, and the relevant disclosures are detailed in Note
4(1), Note 4(21), Note 6(2) and Note 8.

These financial statements are authorised for issue by the Board on 26
August 2022.

These interim financial statements are unaudited.
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2

(1)

52

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

Basis of preparation

The financial statements are prepared and presented in accordance with
the Accounting Standard for Business Enterprises 32 'Interim Financial
Reporting", issued by the Ministry of Finance. The accounting policies
applied in the preparation of the financial statements were consistent
with those applied in the preparation of the financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2021, The financial statements shall be
read in conjunction with the financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2021. Certain items relevant to these financial statements
have been disclosed in accordance with the requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

As at 30 June 2022, the Group recorded current liabilities of
approximately RMB6.09 billion, which exceeded its current assets by
approximately RMB5.60 billion. The Group’s current liabilities mainly
comprise the syndicated loan of RMB1.94 billion, amounts due to related
parties of RMBO0.79 billion and the construction fee payable of Meilan
Airport Phase Il Expansion Project (the “Phase Il Expansion Project”) of
RMB1.20 billion. In addition, the Group’s cash and cash equivalents only
amounted to RMBO0.13 billion as at 30 June 2022.

As disclosed in Note 8(5)(c), the Company and Haikou Meilan jointly
constructed the Phase |l Expansion Project. Haikou Meilan as the
borrower and the Company as the co-borrower have obtained a
syndicated loan (the “Syndicated Loan") with a total facility of RMB7.8
billion and maturity of 20 years which is specifically for financing the
construction of the Phase Il Expansion Project. The Company and
Haikou Meilan jointly undertake the repayment obligation for each
loan drawn down under the Syndicated Loan Agreement and are
jointly and severally liable for the repayment of the Loan (the “Joint
Repayment Commitment”). As of 30 June 2022, the draw-down of
the Syndicated Loan totalled approximately RMB5.18 billion, of which
Haikou Meilan has drawn down RMB3.24 billion and the Company has
drawn down RMB1.94 billion. In 2019, Haikou Meilan has triggered
the event of default of the Syndicated Loan Agreement. Furthermore,
as HNA Group and its certain related parties including Haikou Meilan
were not able to settle their debts in due course and were insolvent
as a whole, Hainan High People Court ("Hainan High Court') ruled on
the acceptance of the substantial consolidated restructuring of HNA
Group and its related companies inclusive of Haikou Meilan totalling
321 companies on 13 March 2021 (the "HNA Group Substantial
Consolidated Restructuring”) ("Haikou Meilan’s Defaults”). Haikou
Meilan’s Defaults resulted in the loan syndicate has the right to request,
at any time, the Company as the co-borrower to undertake the Joint
Repayment Commitment to repay the Syndicated Loan drawn down by
Haikou Meilan amounting to RMB3.24 billion and the right to request, at
any time, the Company to early repay the balance of the Syndicated Loan
drawn down by the Company amounting to RMB1.94 billion and suspend
offering the remaining loan facility of RMB1.96 billion to the Company.
On 24 April 2022, Hainan High Court ruled on the completion of the HNA
Group Substantial Consolidated Restructuring and the Syndicated Loan
Agreement to continue.

(1)
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(Continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

A short-term bank loan of the Company amounting to approximately
RMBO0.38 billion was overdue in November 2020 (the “Overdue Debt"),
which constituted an event of default of the Syndicated Loan. As of
January 2022, the Company has fully repaid the principal and interest of
the loan.

As disclosed in Note 9, on 23 December 2020, the Company received
arbitration application requiring the Company to pay a compensation
for the damage with a maximum amount of HK$6.962 billion in respect
of the H shares subscription agreement entered into in prior year (the
"Arbitration Case"”). As at the date of these financial statements, taking
into account the opinion of the third party law firm, the management is
of the view that the Company has no breach of the contract as claimed
by the applicant and it is less likely that the damage claimed by the
applicant will be supported by the arbitration center. The Company has
not made any provision for the Arbitration Case.

The abovementioned Arbitration Case, Haikou Meilan’'s Defaults and
Overdue Debt triggered events of default of the Syndicated Loan. As
at the date of these financial statements, the Company and Haikou
Meilan have not obtained the written waiver from the loan syndicate,
nor received notice from the loan syndicate requiring the Company
to immediately repay the Syndicated Loan or undertake the Joint
Repayment Commitment.

In the first half of 2022, pneumonia pandemic (the “Pandemic”)
adversely affected passenger travel and flight traffic. For the six months
ended 30 June 2022, Meilan Airport experienced a decline in flight
take-offs and landings, passenger throughput as well as cargo and mail
throughput as compared to the corresponding period of 2021, resulting in
a decrease in the operating revenue and net cash inflow from operating
activities of the Group by 30.4% and 53.0% respectively, as compared
to the corresponding period of 2021. In addition, as Meilan Airport Phase
Il Expansion Project has been put into operation since December 2021,
the Group's operating expenses increased significantly, and the Group's
gross profit margin decreased to 16.7%.

The above events or circumstances indicate the existence of a material
uncertainty which may cast significant doubt over the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(Continued)

2

(1)

b4

Basis of preparation (Continued)

In view of the above, the Directors have carefully considered the
Group's future working capital, operating position and available sources
of financing so as to assess whether the Group has sufficient working
capital and sources of financing to ensure that it can settle its debts
when they fall due and continue as going concern for 12 months from
30 June 2022. The Group is planning a series of measures to mitigate
pressure on working capital, including but not limited to:

(1

(2)

(3)

(4)

In respect of the Arbitration Case, as at the date of these financial
statements, the arbitration is still in progress and the Company
is in the progress of preparing information for the second round
of submissions and supporting materials to the arbitration centre.
The Company will raise a strong defense through the Company’s
arbitration lawyers. The management is of the view that it is less
likely that the matters claimed by the applicant will be supported
by the arbitration center and the Company will be required to pay a
compensation for the damage as requested by the applicant;

The Company, together with Haikou Meilan, has obtained the
agreement of the loan syndicate to continue to perform in
accordance with the repayment term and requirements as agreed
in the original Syndicated Loan Agreement. The Company and
Haikou Meilan are negotiating with the loan syndicate about
the wavier in respect of aforementioned events of default. The
management believes that the loan syndicate will agree to waive
the above defaults and will not require the Company to early repay
the balance of the Syndicated Loan drawn down by the Company
of RMB1.94 billion nor settle the balance of the Syndicated Loan
drawn down by Haikou Meilan of RMB3.24 billion;

In December 2021, Hainan Provincial Development and Reform
Committee has approved a facility of RMB1.4 billion sourced from
the 2022 local government specific bond for the Phase Il Expansion
Project, and as of August 2022, the received amount aggregated
to RMBO0.8 billion. Haikou Meilan and the Company will continue to
follow up with the People’'s Government of Hainan Province for the
distribution arrangement of the remaining facility for the Phase Il
Expansion Project; and

The Group has taken a number of measures to mitigate the
adverse impact of the Pandemic on the Group's business, including
joining hands with airlines to develop the air transport market,
and accelerating the leasing and renovation of duty-free shops in
Terminal 2.

(1)
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(Continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

The Board of the Company has reviewed the Group’s cash flow forecast
prepared by the management of the Company and the Directors are of
the opinion that, after careful consideration of the resources available
to the Group, including the internally generated funds and the available
banking and other financing resources and taking into account the above
plans and measures, and in the absence of unforeseeable circumstances,
the Group will have sufficient working capital for its present requirements
for at least 12 months from the date of these financial statements.

Notwithstanding, significant uncertainty exists as to whether the
management of the Group is able to achieve its plans and measures as
described above. Whether the Group will be able to continue as a going
concern would depend upon the following:

(1) Whether the Company will not be required to pay the damage as
claimed by the applicant of the Arbitration Case;

(2)  Whether the Company can successfully obtain the loan syndicate’s
official waiver in respect of the aforementioned events of default
and then the Company is not required by the loan syndicate to
early repay the balance of the Syndicated Loan drawn down by
the Company of RMB1.94 billion or settle the balance of the
Syndicated Loan drawn down by Haikou Meilan of RMB3.24 billion;

(3)  Whether the Company can continue to utilise, at any time,
the facility of local government specific bonds to settle the
construction payment of the Phase Il Expansion Project; and

(4)  Whether the Group’s airport operation businesses will achieve its
targets as expected and generate stable net operating cash inflow
accordingly.

Should the Group be unable to operate as a going concern, adjustments
would have to be made to adjust the carrying amounts of the Group’'s
assets to their recoverable amounts, to make a provision for financial
liabilities which might arise, and to reclassify non-current assets
and non-current liabilities as current assets and current liabilities,
respectively. The effect of these adjustments has not yet been reflected
in these financial statements.

Critical accounting estimates and judgements

The Group continually evaluates the critical accounting estimates and
key judgements applied based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances. The source of significant judgements and
uncertain estimates on the accounting policies made by the Group in
preparing the interim financial statements is the same as that applied to
the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021.
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3 TAXATION

(1) The main categories and rates of taxes applicable to the Group are set (1

Bi1E

FEBBERANIZRBEREABRKITET

out below:
Category Tax base Tax rate
HiE B R E BE
Enterprise income tax (a) Taxable income 15%
R EMET(a) JE TP 1558 15%
Value-added tax (“"VAT") (b) Taxable value-added amount (Tax payable is calculated 3%, 5%, 6%,
using the taxable sale amount multiplied by the 9% or 13%
applicable tax rate less deductible VAT input of the
current period)
HEE () JEMTIRER (EMT RN IEEHERERR 3% 5% * 6%
EMRE A TENOEEREOBREAHE) 9%3%13%
City maintenance and construction tax Taxable amount of VAT 5% or 7%
VAT MR BN E IR ER B 5% 37 %
Educational surcharge Taxable amount of VAT 3%
B BN BN B EN TR 3%
Local educational surcharge Taxable amount of VAT 2%
Hh 75 2B B M BN E IR ER B 2%

(a)  Pursuant to the Notice on the Policies of Income Tax Preferences for  (a)
Enterprises in Hainan Free Trade Port (Cai Shui [2020] No. 31) jointly
issued by the Department of Finance of Hainan Province and the
Hainan Province Tax Service of State Taxation Administration and the
relevant regulations, the Group is subject to enterprise income tax at the
preferential rate of 15% from 1 January 2020 to 31 December 2024.

Pursuant to the provisions including the Circular on Enterprise Income
Tax Policy concerning Deductions for Equipment and Appliances (Cai Shui
[2018] No. 54) and the Announcement on Extending the Implementation
Period of Certain Preferential Tax Policies (Cai Shui [2021] No. 6) issued
by the State Taxation Administration, as well as the relevant regulations,
during the period from 1 January 2018 to 31 December 2023, the
Group's newly purchased equipment with the original cost less than
RMB5 million can be included in cost and expenses for the period and
deducted against taxable profit in the next month after the asset is put
into use, instead of being depreciated annually.

RIBSHEAVRE BRUFKLRHEEEAHG
BEGN(ERERE B E ZELETEHE
B s A1) (B 1202013155 ) RABEIRE -
ANE B E20205E1 A1H 2024128318 1
BRI A - EIR15% M KBRS ESH -
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For the six months ended 30 June 2022 & %20224%6 /30 H 1618 5 4/E
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TAXATION (Continued)

Pursuant to the Announcement on Relevant Policies for Deepening the
Value-Added Tax Reform (Cai Shui Haiguan [2019] No. 39) and related
regulations jointly issued by the Ministry of Finance, the State Taxation
Administration and the General Administration of Customs, since 1 April
2019, the VAT rates were 13%, 9% and 6% for the Group's tangible
movable property rental income and labour income, the real estate rental
income, and service income and franchise income respectively. The
Group's revenue from leasing the real estate that was obtained on or
before 30 April 2016 was subject to simplified method of taxation, with
an applicable VAT rate of 5%. The Group’s revenue from warehouse
service and stevedoring service was also subject to simplified method of
taxation, with an applicable VAT rate of 3%.

According to the Notice of the Ministry of Finance and the State Taxation
Administration on Tax Policy in Support of the Prevention and Control
of Pneumonia related to New Coronavirus Infection ([2020] No. 8) and
the relevant regulations, the Group shall be exempt from VAT for the
period from 1 January 2020 to 31 March 2021 for the provision of public
transport services, living services and income from the provision of
services to residents.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the six months ended 30 June 2022 # £202246 /30 H 1617 4[]

(All amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated) (% Fla874) - & B & (U BA K ¥or)

4 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED Jq

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(1) Cash at bank and on hand

(1) EWES

SO wRIAE M

30 June 31 December

2022 2021

20224 20214

6A30H 12H31H

Cash on hand EFHRE 7,333 43,135

Cash at bank RITTFER 125,137,922 177,419,225

Deposit of finance company (a) R NS RN - 173,305,625

125,145,255 350,767,985

Less: Provision for credit impairment losses (a) & : 1= BRI EE K E#) - (138,644,500)

Cash at bank and on hand EMEw 125,145,255 212,123,485
Including: Deposits that cannot be readily HEep: TR ARSI HHER

drawn on demand - (34,661,125)

Cash and cash equivalents ReRRESEEY 125,145,255 177,462,360

(a)

58

On 31 December 2021, the Group's deposit with HNA Group Finance
Co., Ltd. ("HNA Finance Company”) was RMB 173,305,625. HNA
Finance Company suffered significant financial difficulties and was
included in the HNA Group Substantial Consolidated Restructuring in
March 2021. The Group estimated the credit impairment losses for
the cash at bank and on hand to be approximately RMB138,644,500.
Hainan High Court ruled on the completion of the HNA Group
Substantial Consolidated Restructuring in April 2022. According to
the outcome of the restructuring plan, the Group will receive cash of
RMB90,000 and ordinary trust shares with a fair value of approximately
RMB34,643,125,and the difference amounted to approximately
RMB72,000 between the carrying amount of the cash at bank and on
hand deposited in HNA Finance Company of RMB34,661,125 and the
fair value of the aforementioned debt-paying assets was recognised as
income from restructuring (Note 4(21)).

(a)

M2021F12A318  AEBEHFRREMEE
FEAERAR ([BMBEARDREAEAR
#173,305,6257C - AEM B B AR EEE X
BN WHR2021 3 AAESMERE
BAHER AEBEEAXEEESNEAR
B854 A AR 1138,644,5007T ° 12202244
B BERRRTIMERELESHEETK -
BIFEELER  AEEKES ARE0,0007T
HIREUERAAREBELH A AREI34,643,1257C
MEBEEANE LUEEEENAAEE
HAEETFRRNEMTEAREEESREF
BEAR34,661,126TH =R #H AR72,000
TLEF AB RS (FHaEm(21)) o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the six months ended 30 June 2022 #£20224%6 /30 H 1618/ 4
(All amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated) (& # 5t 875) - & 888 7 BA K ¥or)

4 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED SOt R R 1E B M &t @

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(2) Accounts receivable

(2) FEURRRR

30 June 31 December

2022 2021
20225 20214
6H30H 12H31H

Accounts receivable by nature FEWER IR I E & o
— From aeronautical services - RERMmEERA 103,347,081 132,563,184
- From non-aeronautical services - RERIEM =LA 271,881,081 320,837,689
375,228,162 453,400,873
Less: Provision for bad debts o EBREE (101,405,029) (143,925,977)
273,823,133 309,474,896

Credit terms granted to customers by the Group are with a general term
ranging from 1 to 3 months.

(@) The ageing analysis of accounts receivable based on the dates of
recognition, is set out as follows:

AEBEGTHETPNERME R RIES

BA -

(a) EWSRFGREAMRRAMMEKRE ST

30 June 31 December

2022 2021

2022%F 20214

6A30H 12H31H

Within 90 days 90K AR 215,342,599 275,961,954
91 to 180 days 91 RE180K 37,532,075 19,932,981
181 to 365 days 181K E365K 34,785,970 31,261,918
Over 365 days 365K £ 87,567,518 126,244,020
375,228,162 453,400,873

—E-—ghERE - SEEWEREERGERAR D9



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B FS SRR M A

For the six months ended 30 June 2022 & £202246/30H 1+618 7 HifE]
(All amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated) (% Fla874) - & B & (U BA K ¥or)

4 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED Jq
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

SOt R R E B MY & @

(3) Other receivables (3) HftpEwx
30 June 31 December
2022 2021
20225 20214
6H30H 12A31H8
Receivables of restructuring debt B E R E R 620,000 8,828,582
Luggage compensation paid on behalf of and FERAZE AR R BITERER
due from airlines 4,218,693 4,230,460
Other current accounts H At 1 25K 44,114,413 44,722,195
48,953,106 57,781,237
Less: Provision for bad debts T AR AR (267,894) (2,856,008)
48,685,212 54,925,229
(4) Long-term equity investments (4) RERERE
Associates — Unlisted companies BMErE—FF FmAE
Movements
for the current period
RE B E

31 December

Share of net loss
under equity method

31 December

2021 REZZAZRNEER 2022

20214 (Note 4(21)) 20224

12A31H8 (M =Em(21)) 12A31H

HNA Airport Holdings (a) B A5 IR (a) - - -

Hainan Konggang Intelligence City ~ BEZEEEMTREEL

Investment Operation EREMRR
Company Limited (MEmEs))

("Hainan Konggang”) 12,848,969 (4,499,456) 8,349,513

12,848,969 (4,499,456) 8,349,513

(@) The place of incorporation and business of HNA Airport Holdings and (a)
its subsidiaries (the "HNA Airport Holdings Group") are in the PRC,
and there is no business transaction relationship between the Group
and HNA Airport Holdings Group. Please refer to Note 6(2) for related

information of interests in associates.

B EEERETAR ((ERBEERE
B itk T 2L E g ERERER - &
AEEEEB LOER EBRECERNER

HEEMRR MR -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B FS R M

For the six months ended 30 June 2022 #£20224%6 /30 H 1618/ 4
(All amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated) (& # 5t 875) - & 888 7 BA K ¥or)

4 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED SO BHRREEMHE @

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(5) Investment properties

(5) REMFEHE

Buildings Land use rights Total
EEREEY = 3t 5 P RE &%

Cost R{E
31 December 2021 and 2021 12A318 &

30 June 2022 202296 A30H 1,773,110,236 38,747,603 1,811,857,839
Accumulated depreciation 2itine
31 December 2021 202149 12A31H (168,533,312) (3,463,694) (171,997,006)
Increase in the current period 7K Ef 1 0 (25,594,653) (248,983) (25,843,636)
30 June 2022 202256 H30H (194,127,965) (3,712,677) (197,840,642)
Carrying amount REEE
30 June 2022 202256 H30H 1,578,982,271 35,034,926 1,614,017,197
31 December 2021 2021412A31H 1,604,576,924 35,283,909 1,639,860,833

(a)  As at 30 June 2022, the investment properties of the Group were mainly  (a) 20226 H308  AEE MR EMEME F
the mall and parking lot of the Terminal Complex Project, the property EAVRIGABERTHNRBNEES BT
title certificates of which are still being handled. Management believes FERBHNEREL AEEETEERASZE
that the building and land without title certificates will not have a KREESHBHEEN T T HAERHLL
significant impact to the operating activities of the Group. EHELAEANTE -

(b)  As at 30 June 2022, the Company's investment properties with carrying (b)) A2022%56A30H AAFRIEEEBEAAR
amount of RMB493,641,408 (original cost of RMB500,580,976) were 493,641,4087T (R B A E#500,580,976
pledged as the Group’s borrowings (31 December 2021: carrying amount T)BEE YR E (2021F12A318 ' @\
of RMB496,943,223 (original cost of RMB500,580,976)) (Note 8(5)(c)). BEAARAL96,943,2237T REB AR

500,580,9767T) 1E A& B & 3K (5 /\(5)(c))
Y -

—Eo—EHEE < SHEWMEREERAARAA O]



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B FS SRR M A

For the six months ended 30 June 2022 & £202246/30H 1+618 7 HifE]

(All amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated) (% Fla874) - & B & (U BA K ¥or)

(6)

4 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED ] S4B ERKIE B M 5E @
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
Fixed assets (6) BEEE
Machinery Office
and Motor equipment
Buildings equipment vehicles and others Total
FEREEY R ERTIHE RARBERHEM &t
Cost [RE

31 December 2021 20215124318 7,414,708,809 730,261,532 188,823,384 247,316,180 8,681,109,905
Increase in the current period R HE

Purchase BE 353,097 2,746,835 - 8,478,740 11,578,672
Decrease in the current period KER D

Disposal and other decrease REREMAD (15,000) - (2,882,020) (2,215,317) (5,112,337)

30 June 2022 2022%F6A30H 7,415,046,906 733,008,367 185,941,364 253,579,603 8,587,576,240
Accumulated depreciation ZitIhE

31 December 2021 20214124318 (737,816,721) (90,915,780) (44,292,108) (184,224,536) (1,057,249,145)
Increase in the current period AERE N

Provision (a) Ftiz(a) (92,408,701) (23,941,684) (7,881,148) (14,039,258) (138,270,791)
Decrease in the current period RER D

Disposal and other decrease REREME D 9,133 - 2,755,636 1,917,841 4,682,610

30 June 2022 202246 A30H (830,216,289) (114,857,464) (49,417,620) (196,345,953) (1,190,837,326)
Carrying amount REEE

30 June 2022 202246 A30H 6,584,830,617 618,150,903 136,523,744 57,233,650 7,396,738,914

31 December 2021 20218128318 6,676,892,088 639,345,752 144,531,276 63,091,644 7,523,860,760

62

In the current period, the amounts of depreciation expenses charged (a)
to cost of sales and general and administrative expenses were
RMB135,645,376 and RMB2,625,415 (for the six months ended 30 June
2021: RMB51,446,022 and RMB1,376,093) respectively.

REAALCERALRERBANTES R AA
R %135,645,37670 & A R #2,625,4157T (#
%£2021%6A30H 16fE A : A R#51,446,022
TN AR#1,376,0937T) °
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(6)
(b)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Fixed assets (Continued)

As at 30 June 2022, the carrying amount of international terminal
building and its ancillary projects was RMB155,004,139 (31 December
2021: RMB159,785,012). The property title certificates in respect of
the international terminal building are jointly held by the Company and
Haikou Meilan.

As at 30 June 2022, the carrying amount of the west gallery expansion
project, hotel and aviation museum was RMB1,093,235,059 (31
December 2021: RMB1,111,025,440). The Company is in the process of
applying for the property title certificates. Management believes that it
will not have a significant impact to the Group's operating activities.

The Phase Il Expansion Project has been officially put into use since
December 2021. As at 30 June 2022, the Group was going through
the procedures to confirm the land use rights for the terminal, ancillary
facilities and relevant assets of the Phase Il Expansion Project, and
applying for property title certificates for the buildings of the Phase Il
Expansion Project.

As at 30 June 2022, the buildings with carrying amount of
RMB5,087,414,797 (original cost of RMB5,549,689,867) have been
pledged as collateral for the Group’'s borrowings (31 December
2021: carrying amount of RMB5,151,681,485 (original cost of
RMB5,549,689,867)) (Note 8(5)(c)).

TR _FHHRE c BEXHEBREEROERAR

B 75 R 5% B

For the six months ended 30 June 2022 & %£20224%6530H 1618 5 4
(All amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated) (& # 5t 875) - & 888 7 BA K ¥or)

) U

(6)
(b)

(c)

S OtET I 3R R 18 B M & @

BEEE @

M2022%6A308  EEMILEREETREN
EEEBEEAARE155004,1397T (20214
12A318 : AR#159,785,01270) + E ¥ EHY
EEEEEAEEBOZEES -

R2022%6HA30H M b E P BB IE T T
BOAEMMEENEEREEBEAARE
1,093,235,0597C (20214128318 : AR
1,111,025,44070) @ E 5 = = # F & £ 91 2
FOASETEERATEHAEENEL A
RERTFEE -

“HIREEE N2021F12A EREA - B
2022F6H308  —HIEEBEMMIGIERHE
MEBREEERER ZEREFENATK
VR -—HEZBEHEEANEEYNEEESE
MRS o

M2022566A30H  AQRIEEEEAARE
5,087,414,797 7T (JR B A R %5,549,689,867
T)WEEZESEY (20215128318 - @A
Bl A ARMS151,681,4857C RBARK
5,5649,689,8677T) £ & 7~ & B & 3 (Kt 3% /\(5)
(c)) B3 IEY) -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the six months ended 30 June 2022 & £202246/30H 1+618 7 HifE]

(All amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated) (% Fla87s) - & 8 & (7 BA K ¥or)

4 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(7)

(8)

64

SOt R R E B MY & @

Right-of-use assets (7) ERAEKEE
Machinery Office
and Motor equipment
Buildings equipment vehicles and others Total
FEREEY R ERIAR BROREBERHEM &%
Cost [RE
31 December 2021 and 30 June 2021912 A318 &
2022 202246 A30H 87,595,872 26,350,363 103,621,477 53,475,232 271,042,944
Accumulated depreciation 2 E
31 December 2021 20215124318 (41,429,017) (12,367,494) (58,582,115) (22,561,682) (134,940,308)
Increase in the current period AERE
Provision BT (14,625,022) (3,984,241) (5,271,336) (1,996,864) (25,877,463)
30 June 2022 2022456 A30H (56,054,039) (16,351,735) (63,853,451) (24,558,546) (160,817,771)
Carrying amount REEE
30 June 2022 2022456 A30H 31,541,833 9,998,628 39,768,026 28,916,686 110,225,173
31 December 2021 20214128318 46,166,855 13,982,869 45,039,362 30,913,550 136,102,636
Intangible assets (8) BEERE
Land use rights Office software Total
T b {5 AR b N TS &5t
Cost FE
31 December 2021 and 2021 12A318 &
30 June 2022 202296 A30H 1,135,967,680 401,832 1,136,369,512
Accumulated amortisation R 3
31 December 2021 20219 12A31H (69,210,345) (186,661) (69,397,006)
Amortisation charged in the current 7 Hi# 4%(a)
period (a) (8,469,655) (20,091) (8,489,746)
30 June 2022 20226 H30H (77,680,000) (206,752) (77,886,752)
Carrying amount AR5
30 June 2022 20226 H30H 1,058,287,680 195,080 1,058,482,760
31 December 2021 2021412A31H 1,066,757,335 215,171 1,066,972,506
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(8)
(a)

(b)

(c)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 R 5% B

For the six months ended 30 June 2022 & %£20224%6530H 1618 5 4
(All amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated) (& # 5t 875) - & 888 7 BA K ¥or)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Intangible assets (Continued)

In the current period, the amounts of amortisation of intangible assets
charged to cost of sales, and general and administrative expenses were
RMB8,469,655 and RMB20,091 respectively (for the six months ended
30 June 2021: RMB1,848,003 and RMB20,091).

International terminal building of Meilan Airport and its ancillary projects
were put into use in 2013 (Note 4(6)(b)). As at 30 June 2022, the
carrying amount of the land use rights of the relevant projects amounted
to approximately RMB38,479,174 (original cost of RMB45,078,000) (31
December 2021: carrying amount of approximately RMB38,815,577
(original cost of RMB45,078,000)). The land use right certificates are
currently held by Haikou Meilan, which however does not affect the use
of land by the Group.

As at 30 June 2022, the Group was going through the procedures
to confirm the land use rights for the terminal, ancillary facilities and
relevant assets of the Phase Il Expansion Project.

As at 30 June 2022, the land use rights with carrying amount of
RMB959,078,314 (original cost of RMB989,433,461) have been pledged
as collateral for the Group’s borrowings (31 December 2021: carrying
amount of RMB966,244,605 (original cost of RMB989,433,461)) (Note
8(56)(c)).

TR _FHHRE c BEXHEBREEROERAR

) U

(8)
(a)

(b)

(c)

S OtET I 3R R 18 B M & @

BEEE @
REFFALERANEEERNEL EENH
He®mo Rl A ARES 469,6557T A K AR
20,0917 (H £202146 308 IF61E A : AR
1,848,003 L LA & A R#20,0917T) °

TRIHIS BB M uh i R AR T2 TE B 2742013
F/-AFEA (& E(6)(b)) - 1202246 A30
HzIREEMmLtFERAREABENAA
R #38,479,1747T (JRB A A R 45,078,000
JL) (2021512A31B  RABEOBARE
38,815,577t * [R{E A AR ¥45,078,0007T) °
T FARENEEOEE S  BETEER
EEF &M -

202296 A30H » “HIEZIB A WM UAE X
LB B8 A% e & 2 A B FR 2 TR A 1 E PR
E

R202266H30H  ARRIEEEEAARYE
959,078,314t (JR {8 A R #989,433,4617T) B
T A AE (202112 A31H : REEBEAA
R #966,244,6057C © [R B A K #989,433,461
To) fE B AR SEEE K (M52 /\(5)(c)) Bk Yy -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B FS SRR M A

For the six months ended 30 June 2022 & £202246/30H 1+618 7 HifE]
(All amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated) (% Fla87s) - & 8 & (7 BA K ¥or)

4 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(9) Short-term borrowings

SOt R R E B MY & @

(9) EHER

30 June 31 December

2022 2021

20224 20214

6H30H 12H31H

Unsecured borrowings ERER 20,000,000 -

(a)  As at 30 June 2022, the interest rate of the short-term borrowing was (a) 20224 6H30F  ZCHEZHF = A5
3.55% and will be due in February 2023. 3.55% © W #H2023F2 A F 5 -

(10) BT BRRX

FERRFIRE AR BB RE AT

(10) Accounts payable

The ageing of accounts payable based on their recording dates is

analysed as follows:

30 June 31 December
2022 2021
20224 20214
6H30H 12A31H8
Within 90 days 90K A 119,219,731 124,905,871
91 to 180 days 91 KE180K 13,925,573 11,039,865
181 to 365 days 181X E365K 17,877,856 57,372,286
Over 365 days 365K A £ 179,878,541 151,163,525
330,901,701 344,481,547

(11) Taxes payable (1) EXHRE
30 June 31 December
2022 2021
20224 20214
6H30H 12H318
Enterprise income tax payable ERXDEMETR 317,279,628 317,279,628
VAT payable J&E IR (B 61,846,879 66,571,891
Property tax payable BRXEER 14,347,900 4,668,555
Individual income tax payable EREAMREE 3,930,988 4,503,010
Others Hib 15,928,759 15,661,470
413,334,154 408,684,554
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B FS R M

For the six months ended 30 June 2022 #£20224%6 /30 H 1618/ 4

(All amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated) (& # 5t 875) - & 888 7 BA K ¥or)

4 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(12) Other payables

m S EHRREENTF®

(12) Hb B R
30 June
2022
20224
6H30H

31 December
2021

20214
12H31H

Construction cost payable and
quality guarantee deposit

Amounts due to related parties (a)

Amounts due to third parties
Guarantee deposits payable

Accrued airlines development subsidies

Dividends payable
Interest payable
Others

FER R TR TR
TERERE

J& A< BB Bt 75 X9 (a)

e 58 =77 1 2R BROA

RS RES

B R A AR 5A 3 40 BR 3K

JE A B A

JEAS 7.8

Hity

1,707,338,257
266,223,817
257,147,000
115,209,701
13,061,000
5,992,012
2,127,694
107,667,410

1,797,629,169
489,819,807
114,637,192
13,061,000
5,992,012
53,789,391
142,693,378

2,474,766,891

2,617,621,949

As at 30 June 2022, amounts due to related parties mainly included:
1) current accounts payable of RMB50,858,000 (31 December 2021:
RMB308,005,000), which were interest free and unsecured; 2) other
temperately received amounts of RMB215,365,817 due to Haikou Meilan
(31 December 2021: RMB181,814,807).

(13) Non-current liabilities due within one year

(a) TFR2022F6A30H  AEEENEE HRER
$& 1) BB 7 R 3R R H650,858,0007T (2021
F£12H318 : AR #¥308,005,0007T) @ #% K HE
me - EmEE G 2) BB B EME WA
R #215,365,8177C (2021512 A31H : AR#

181,814,8077T) °

(13) —FANHMWERBEE

30 June 31 December
2022 2021
20224 20214
6H30H 12H31H

Long-term payables due within one year —E R EE A K HIFE R
(Note 4(15)) (MFFERT(15)) 756,155,812 771,377,904
Lease liabilities due within one year (Note 4(14)) —ERNZEAHBEEE (MM (14)) 77,469,537 82,952,635

Syndicated Loan for the Phase Il Expansion

Project (Note 8(5)(c))

—HERIE R FIRREEK

(Bt FE\(5)(c)

1,944,000,000

1,944,000,000

2,777,625,349

2,798,330,539

TR _FHHRE c BEXHEBREEROERAR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B FS SRR M A

For the six months ended 30 June 2022 & £202246/30H 1+618 7 HifE]
(All amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated) (% Fla874) - & B & (U BA K ¥or)

4 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED EHBEHRERERHFE @
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
(14) Lease liabilities (14)FHEEE
30 June 31 December
2022 2021
20224 20214
6H30H 12A31H
Lease liabilities HEAE 86,361,480 148,218,902
Less: Lease liabilities due within one year B —FANEHNEEEE
(Note 4(13)) (Bt 5EPR(13)) (77,469,537) (82,952,635)
8,891,943 65,266,267

(a)  Lease liabilities are the balance of the Group’'s minimum lease payments (a) MHEBEAREEKEMRE N KEENERRER
after deducting unrecognised finance charge. BE B RHENSRE -

30 June 31 December

2022 2021
2022%F 20214
6H30H 12A31H
Payables to Haikou Meilan ENEInES )] 86,311,838 100,719,585
Payables to Canon (China) Co., Ltd. FERERE () AR AR 49,642 100,972
Payables to Dongyin Finance Leasing ENREMEARE
(Tianjin) Co., Ltd. (RZE)BRRA - 43,531,890
Payables to Jiangsu Finance Leasing Co., Ltd. BRI#SREEERAA - 3,866,455
86,361,480 148,218,902
As at 30 June 2022, the unrecognised finance charge amounted to M20226F6A30H ARV BREEABRTEA
RMB1,338,972 (31 December 2021: RMB2,697,850). AR#1,338,9727C (20219128318 : AR

2,697,8507C) °

(b)  As at 30 June 2022, future cash outflows to which the Group was (b) FA202296A30H  AEEAMAHAEEE -

potentially exposed that were not included in the lease liabilities EREHARREECRSREMNEEAZTA
comprise the following: the future minimum lease payments of ERAETHECRENERHEENEEELE
short-term leases and low-value asset leases contract adopting HEARMARGEEZNEEAAARE
the practical expedient according to the new lease standard were 240,0007T F1 A R #286,1287T (2021412 A31
RMB240,000 and RMB286,128 (31 December 2021: RMB379,950 and A : AR #¥379,9507T 1 A K #583,7737T) -
RMB583,773) respectively, and both of which should be paid within one BHE—FRAZM-

year.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B FS R M

For the six months ended 30 June 2022 #£20224%6 /30 H 1618/ 4
(All amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated) (& # 5t 875) - & 888 7 BA K ¥or)

4 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED SO BHRREEMHE @

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(15) Long-term payables (15) REAEN R
30 June 31 December
2022 2021
20225 20214
6H30H 12A31H8
Payables to related parties (a) JE S B B 5 Z A (a) 774,133,098 774,133,098
Deposit payable (b) e (b) 39,019,416 39,019,416
Payable for entrusted loans (c) FERZFEE () - 18,392,556
813,152,514 831,545,070
Less: Amounts from related parties B — F AR AR BB 5 R

due within one year (Note 4(13)) (Kt 5EPT(13)) (743,004,125) (743,004,125)

Less: Deposit due within one year (Note 4(13)) 3§ : —E A E|E O FER &
(Mt3Em(13)) (13,151,687) (12,578,429)

Less: Entrusted loans due within one year o FARENEEER
(Note 4(13)) (FF&EEP(13)) - (15,795,350)
(756,155,812) (771,377,904)
56,996,702 60,167,166

(a) As at 30 June 2022, amounts due to related parties (Note 8(4)(f)) are  (a) 202296 HA308 -+ % =X 1 A& JFE (- B B 5 1 5K
interest-free and unsecured. Certain amounts, which have no specific NG - EE -~ EIKIE - AR E oD%
term agreed and are classified as long-term payables due within one EREHNTABER MoBEAE—FANIHY
year. RHEERR -

(b)  The deposit payable represents the deposit temporarily received for (b)) BENBELAREEE—F=FARFIEER
entering into the management agreement between the Group and the EHAREEFEBESHETZE=AAAIME K
third party company for lease of the parking lot of the Group. The lease S - ZHEHR B2018F12A1H #BFH10
term is 10 years starting from 1 December 2018. According to the FREBEAEEEANHERMSBHRED
agreement, the Group should return the deposits in instalments during W E RS o
the lease period.

(¢)  In February 2022, the Group repaid the principal and interest of the (c) 2022928  AEBERFIEEEITLZAER

entrusted loan in advance.

TR _FHHRE c BEXHEBREEROERAR

R MFE -
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For the six months ended 30 June 2022 & £202246/30H 1+618 7 HifE]
(All amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated) (% Fla87s) - & 8 & (7 BA K ¥or)

4 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

SOt R R E B MY & @

(16) Other non-current liabilities (16)HtERBEE
30 June 31 December
2022 2021
20225 20214
6H30H 12H31H
Advances of parking lot rent BliEESAS 87,083,750 96,462,000
Advances of franchise fee TR E B 6,937,201 10,344,332
Others Hih 2,314,859 3,780,682
96,335,810 110,587,014
(17) Capital surplus (17)BEXRNTE
30 June 2022 and
31 December 2021
2022%6H30H
%2021%12H831H
Share premium f& 0w (B 598,983,655
Other capital surplus HEMEARRQTE
Share of changes in equity other than s AZEN IR E BN
comprehensive income and profit distribution of R 4R & W e A0 A B 2 BE LA SR
investees under the equity method HiERZE) 120,177,293
Others Hih 100,500,999
819,661,947
. . PN 3
(18) Retained earnings (18) R 7 B ¥ &

Six months ended 30 June

HZ68308 k6@ A
2022 2021
20224 20214

Retained earnings at the beginning of the period Ei#] & 7 B &

3,013,842,700

Add: Net (loss)/profit attributable to shareholders fl : ZANHIER B A& A AL E A

of the Company for the current period T (&18) /FE

(11,788,124)

2,248,711,127

345,356,411

Retained earnings at the end of the period BAZR R 2 B A1 E

3,002,054,576

2,594,067,538
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4 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED EHMBEREEMNE @@
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(19) Revenue, cost of sales, selling and distribution (M) EEWANMEEXEREX -HEER
expenses, and general and administrative LEEER
expenses

Six months ended 30 June

H Z6H30H LL61E A
2022 2021
Revenue EEIWA 20224 20214
Aeronautical business: Mz MER
Passenger service income RE RSB 98,063,591 146,673,932
Ground handling service income b B R 7S & 69,055,628 85,766,085
Fees and related charges on aircraft TR B PE AR W B
take-off and landing 45,552,220 52,483,801
212,671,439 284,923,818
Non-aeronautical business: M =M
Franchise income R ET RS IR 230,507,465 374,426,739
Hotel income IR WA 40,291,984 51,029,218
Rental income He A 37,160,652 31,422,895
Freight and packaging income BEMBERA 35,702,335 56,681,589
VIP room income EEZWA 20,005,729 38,776,210
Car parking income (CEE TN 7,374,771 7,375,230
Other income H A 38,919,505 49,347,578
409,962,441 609,059,459
622,633,880 893,983,277

—Eo—FEhERE <« sEEBEREERGERELA /]
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4 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(19) Revenue, cost of sales, selling and distribution
expenses, and general and administrative

expenses (Continued)

Cost of sales, selling and distribution expenses and general and
administrative expenses mainly include the following items:

W S EHRREENTF®

(19)EE W AFME ZERA
EEBEER@m

CHEEH

BERKN HEBRREEEMRTIZHNUTE

BREAX :

Six months ended 30 June

HZ=6A30H1L6ME A
2022 2021
20224 20214
Employee salaries and benefit expenses ETTERENER 126,269,211 119,962,577
Depreciation expenses of fixed assets BEEENEAEEE
and right-of-use assets EZEHA 164,148,254 76,840,098
Airport and logistic services fee W5 RN AR A RIS B 54,551,998 34,004,072
QOutsourcing and sub-contracted labour costs Brsone kA KIRES R 55,564,603 49,307,864
Depreciation of investment properties REGERHWEFESER 25,843,636 18,701,163
Repairs and maintenance HwisE R 21,297,944 33,660,297
Utilities KEE 21,672,441 22,580,856
Amortisation of intangible assets BEEEHIEER 8,489,746 1,868,094
Packaging materials 4R AE AR AR 2,018,188 3,666,634
Handling fees of CAAC Settlement Centre RMBEERLFESE 1,358,449 1,886,367
Travelling expenses EZIRE 70,537 362,899
Others Hith 74,946,646 83,807,879
556,231,653 446,648,800

AEBEERHHENKEERENASIHE
B A HER 512202296308 1618 A
+ %8 B AR #679,6667T (£ £202146 A30H
1F61E A : AR%866,3115T) °

(20) i E A

The Group directly recognised the lease payments of short-term leases
and low-value leases in profit or loss, and the amount for the six months
ended 30 June 2022 was RMB679,566 (for the six months ended 30
June 2021: RMB866,311).

(20) Financial expenses

Six months ended 30 June

B Z6A30H 1L61E A

2022 2021

20224 20214

Interest expenses on borrowings A B 43,329,950 66,268,511
Add: Interest expenses on lease liabilities m:-HEEERETER

and entrusted loans FEX 5,531,946 2,478,673

Less: Capitalised interest B BAEFE - (48,157,200)

Interest expenses FMEER 48,861,896 20,589,984

Less: Interest income B FBUA (689,662) (495,736)

Others Hib 220,961 384,768

48,393,195 20,479,016
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For the six months ended 30 June 2022 #£20224%6 /30 H 1618/ 4
(All amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated) (& # 5t 875) - & 888 7 BA K ¥or)

4 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED SO BRRIER W w
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
(21) Investment income/(loss) 2NEEWRE - (E8)
Six months ended 30 June
B Z6H30H L61E B
2022 2021
20224 20214
Income from debt restructuring of the HNA BMEEELAHEEN
Group Substantial Consolidated B E )
Restructuring (a) 23,224,670 -
Investment loss from long-term equity BEEZENREIELTEARN
investment in unlisted companies using KERRERE B L
equity method (4,499,456) (7,938)
Others Hitb 658,290 -
19,383,504 (7,938)
There is no significant restriction on the repatriation of investment RNEENFIEIEE Wz & B 8 E AR o

income of the Group.

(@) In April 2022, Hainan High Court ruled on the completion of the (a) 2022548 BESESETEMNEETES

HNA Group Substantial Consolidated Restructuring. According to the HEEFENTTE - ASERE LM BEEET
implementation results of the above restructuring plan, the Group BTER RIEEREINEEEEEHE
derecognised the receivable determined to be recognised by HNA Group BHEQRKHEERANEYGRIE - HEERE
Substantial Consolidated Restructuring area, which will be settled by IR MEBEETHEETEE ZEEIK
cash and the ordinary trust shares. The difference between the carrying EENEMFELAEEEEN L AABENEZS
amount of the account receivable and the fair value of assets to be BAR23,152,6707T °

repaid was amounted to RMB23,152,670.

As mentioned in Note 4(1), the Group recognised as income of debt HE (AT - AEEEE MM S AT
restructurings of RMB72,000 on deposits of HNA Finance Company, REREREWZ A ARBET2,0005T &5
which was included in the Income from debt restructuring of the HNA ANEMEEESEAHERAMNERKEA K
Group Substantial Consolidated Restructuring of RMB23,224,670. BARE23,224,6707T °
(22) Income tax expenses (22) FREHER
Six months ended 30 June
EH Z6H30H LL61E A
2022 2021
20224 20214
Current income tax calculated based BRERBBRETEN
on tax law and related regulations BEHFEH - 62,961,596
Deferred income tax BIEFRSH 18,102,286 (927,607)
18,102,286 62,033,989

—E-—GhERE « SEEMEREEROHERAT /3
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4

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(23) (Losses)/Earnings per share

(a)

(b)

Basic (losses)/earnings per share is calculated by dividing consolidated
net (loss)/profit attributable to ordinary shareholders of the parent
company by the weighted average number of outstanding ordinary
shares of the Company:

SO B ®RRIER M E @

(23) R (F541E) W H

(a) EAXFK(EE) WHEUAFERT AR LB
REA BT (B18) FEBRIAAQREITE
AN B AR Y DN E T EREHE -

Six months ended 30 June

HZE6H30H k618 A
2022 2021
20224 20214
Consolidated net (loss)/profit attributable FEBRE AR L EBBRED
to ordinary shareholders of the ABFE (BB, FIE
Company (RMB) (AR%IT) (11,788,124) 345,356,411
Weighted average number of outstanding KRR EITENE B
ordinary shares of the Company (Share) A g (%) 473,213,000 473,213,000
Basic (losses)/earnings per share (RMB) HAGR(ER) WHE(ARET) (0.02) 0.73

Diluted (losses)/earnings per share is calculated by dividing the
consolidated net (loss)/profit attributable to ordinary shareholders of the
Company adjusted based on the dilutive potential ordinary shares by the
adjusted weighted average number of outstanding ordinary shares of
the Company. As there were no dilutive potential ordinary shares during
the period (for the six months ended 30 June 2021: Nil), diluted (losses)/
earnings per share equal to basic (losses)/earnings per share.

(24) Dividends

74

On 26 August 2022, the Board of Directors proposed not to distribute
2022 interim cash dividend (2021 interim cash dividend: Nil).

b) WHESKR(EE) KWKEAREREES
CLEBERABRENEBRE AR LT BBKK
EWAHF (BB FBERUAZEED
QB EATENE B R A N F S BT
B -RAHME AQ2RTEFEEEHEM
MEZELTBK (HE2021%F6A308 1t61@E
A& At HESRKR (BB Kx
EREXFR(BER) K-

(24) BRI
720226 8A26H ' FEEEFE T HIK20224F
RER SRR (2021 F R EIR SR A « Z)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the six months ended 30 June 2022 #£20224%6 /30 H 1618/ 4
(All amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated) (& # 5t 875) - & 888 7 BA K ¥or)

4 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED SOt R R 1E B M &t @

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(25) Supplementary information to the cash flow (25)RERERFBRESR
statement

(a) Reconciliation from net (loss)/profit to cash flows from (a) #F (BE) FBAHFLHLLEZTHR
operating activities EhRE

Six months ended 30 June

B Z6H30R 1L61EA
2022 2021
20224 20214
Net (loss)/profit F(E518) FE (25,467,996) 349,475,325
Add: Provision for expected credit losses - ERRBEEBKX 1,604,411 9,314,280
Depreciation of investment properties REHFEHENE 25,843,636 18,701,163
Depreciation of fixed assets BErErEENE 138,270,791 52,822,115
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FHEEENE 25,877,463 24,017,983
Amortisation of intangible assets mEEEHE 8,489,746 1,868,094
Losses on disposal of assets BERER% 240,408 236,589
Amortisation of long-term prepaid expenses EH@ FHERBH 469,432 475,853
Amortisation of deferred income I FE Wy 2 4 6 (1,416,667) (1,416,666)
Losses arising from changes in fair value ARhBEZHIEKX 5,390,335 -
Financial expenses M E R 48,861,896 20,589,984
Investment (income)/loss 128 (WF) EE (19,383,504) 7,938
Decrease/(Increase) in deferred tax assets BEMBHEERLD (M) 16,998,449 (667,396)
Increase/(Decrease) in deferred tax liabilities EEFRSHAEELE N Od) 1,103,837 (260,211)
Increase in inventories FEMIE (350,455) (369,566)
Decrease/(Increase) in operating receivables AT EKRIEE AR (M) 18,546,403 (42,756,039)

Decrease in operating payables Lt R IE B AR A (54,066,077) (25,726,025)
Net cash flows from operating activities RETHELENBESREFHE 191,012,108 406,313,421
Significant operating, investing and financing activities that do not involve THERE DN THEAALE  REFE L TE

cash receipts and payments

Six months ended 30 June

EZ6H30H 1L61EA
2022 2021
20225 20214
Other non-current financial assets increased ANEFTHE AL BB EAHhBEIREDN
in the current period to be repaid with EMERSEMEE
ordinary trust shares 48,862,156 -
Right-of-use assets increase in the NERFTINM R B B
current period - 34,746,635
48,862,156 34,746,635

TR —FRERE .

EHEMBEREERMHARADF
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the six months ended 30 June 2022 & £202246/30H 1+618 7 HifE]
(All amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated) (% Fla874) - & B & (U BA K ¥or)

4 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED SO BRRIER W w
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
(25) Supplementary information to the cash flow () BEeEREXRFBRERN @
statement (Continued)
(b) Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (b) BERBSEEYWEELHEN
Six months ended 30 June
H Z6H30H LL6{E A
2022 2021
20224 20214
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of BehBESEBEYN
the period BAREAEE 125,145,255 516,525,634
Less: Cash and cash equivalents at B ReRBESEEDH
the beginning of the period HR Y B2 %E (177,462,360) (257,683,611)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and BehBESEEBEMF
cash equivalents CR ) /1 (52,317,105) 258,842,023
(c) For the six months ended 30 June 2022, the total cash outflow related  (c)

/6

# 22022466 H30H IF618 A B H - A& H
SHMEAEERBNERESREAARE
48,129,241t (H 20216 A30H 161 A A
M : ARM7,770,4677T) - ERFFAEEED
ENEEEEINOSERAREALT 449,675
7 (Bk £202146 A30H (L61E A BAfE - AR
6,904,1567T) * AR MG ALEED -

to leases paid by the Group amounted to RMB48,129,241 (For the six
months ended 30 June 2021: RMB7,770,467), of which RMB47,449,675
(For the six months ended 30 June 2021: RMB6,904,156) was included

in financing activities to pay-off lease liabilities and the remaining cash
outflow was included in operating activities.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B FS R M

For the six months ended 30 June 2022 #£20224%6 /30 H 1618/ 4
(All amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated) (& # 5t 875) - & 888 7 BA K ¥or)

CHANGES IN THE SCOPE OF CONSOLIDATION #=

There were no changes in the scope of consolidation for the current
period.

EHEENEE

AHMEARELAHFBENES -

INTERESTS IN OTHER ENTITIES N EHMEBDPHES
Equity in subsidiaries (1) EFLAIRHES
Particulars of group entities (a) EEBENBER
Major business  Place of Registered Direct Voting Way of
Type of entity location registration ~ Nature of business capital  shareholding rights (%) acquisition
EAEH IEREY  ER% AHBHE &R ERERLH RRELH Y EN
Hainan Meilan International Limited liability Haikou Haikou Rendering of cargo services 20,000,000 51% 60% Setup
Airport Freight Co., Ltd company
['Meilan Freight')()
SEXRERMAEEAR  ARERDA 50m a0m REEERE RUDE
EELAZHEEN
Hainan Ruigang Limited liability Haikou Haikou Logistics services and business 50,000,000 100% 100% Setup
Logistics Co., Ltd. company investment
["Ruigang Logistics "]
BERANRERAA EREELR B0m gom WRBREERE RUDE
([ER)
Hainan Meilan Airport Hotel Limited liability Haikou Haikou Hotel investment and operation 5,000,000 100% 100% Setup
Investment Co., Ltd. company
("Meilan Airport Hotel')
SEXMMAEEREAR  ARERDA B0m a0m EEREEE GO
RA(ZHBSERE])

(i) The percentage of shareholding in Meilan Freight held by the Company is
51%. The key operating and financial decisions of Meilan Freight are made
by the Board of Directors. The resolution of the Board of Directors should be
subject to the approval of at least half of the directors who attend the Board
of Directors' meeting. The Company has the right to designate 3 out of total
5 board members in Meilan Freight, so the Company has the voting rights of
60% in it.

The Group does not have a significant minority interest in subsidiaries.

There is no restriction of the use of the Group's assets nor the
settlement of the liability of the Group.

(i) ARRUEBEENFRILOIAG1% XEHE
BXIEZEERMBORRHESSEL EF
EREEIECHLFESFEERZN D2 —
WEERE BB THEEESENEHR
54 APRBAHRKEIZES MARRHE
K FRRMELL D A60% °

ARETGEER D BRFERNT AT -

AEEAFEEREREERFEREAES
El
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For the six months ended 30 June 2022 & £202246/30H 1+618 7 HifE]

(All amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated) (% Fla874) - & B & (U BA K ¥or)

6 INTERESTS IN OTHER ENTITIES (continued)

(2) Interests in associates
(a) General information of associates

N EHEHMETEIHIES @
(2) EHELEPHNES
(a) BELTEMEMEE

Whether
strategic to
the Group’s  Shareholding

Major business location Place of registration Nature of business activities (%)
HEETEE
TELE it EBME REAEEKM BFREA
Hainan Konggang Haikou, Hainan province  Haikou, Hainan province  Property development, resort
operation, eco-agriculture
development and gardening Yes 30%
BEER gEEE0m FEEEOm NERE KEAEREEHE £
BERE #EZ = 30%
HNA Airport Haikou, Hainan province  Haikou, Hainan province  Airport operation and ground handling
Holdings (i) services; airport investment,
holding, constructing and rebuilding Yes 24.5%
IS RR() gEaEAm BEEENm KSELERBMMAERY BERE
TR ER B = 245%

Investments in associates are accounted for using the equity method.

(i) The percentage of the shareholding held by the Group is 24.5%. The Board
of HNA Airport Holdings consists of 7 directors and 1 director is nominated
by the Group and therefore, the Group is able to exercise significant
influence over HNA Airport Holdings and regards it as an associate of the
Group.

AEEY LR EREDRBERERE -

(i)

REBEHEMEISZERNFFRLL P 5245% -
BRESERNEEGR7AESMANK - K
HEAEE TS - (T AN B HEIEME IS
EEEMEATZE  SUHEERBEDERE -
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INTERESTS IN OTHER ENTITIES (continued)

Interests in associates (Continued)

General information of associates (Continued)

HNA Airport Holdings Group is principally engaged in the operation
and management of Sanya Phoenix Airport, holds investments in its
associates engaged construction of Sanya new airport and real estate
development business respectively and carry out other investment
activities. HNA Airport Holdings is a subsidiary of Hainan Airport
Infrastructure Co., Ltd, which was included in the restructuring of Hainan
Airport in February 2021. Taking into account the declaration of creditors’
rights, the retention of creditors’ rights, the settlement of creditors’
rights and the implementation of the restructuring plan of Hainan Airport
Restructuring by HNA Airport Holdings, the net liabilities attributable
to the parent company in the consolidated financial statements was
of approximately RMB2.20 billion as at 31 December 2021 after the
derecognition of other non-current financial assets and the provision of
expected credit losses of receivables from related parties according to
the relevant restructing plan. For the six months ended 30 June 2022,
HNA Airport Holdings Group recognised the net profit attributable to
shareholders of the Company of RMB60 million due to the continuous
impact of the Pandemic. The Group recognised the ending balance of
the corresponding long-term equity investment by calculating the net
assets share based on the amount attributable to the parent company in
the consolidated financial statements and shareholding ratios. As at 30
June 2022 and 31 December 2021, the carrying amount of the Group’s
long-term equity investment in HNA Airport Holdings Group was nil.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The chief operating decision-maker (“CODM") of the Group has been
identified as the Executive Directors and senior management led by the
president of the Company. Management reviews the Group's internal
reporting in order to assess performance and allocate resources.
Management has determined the operating segments based on these
reports.

Management considers the Group conducts its business within one
business segment — the business of operating an airport and a hotel and
provision of related services in the PRC and the Group also operates
within one geographical segment because its revenues are primarily
generated from and its assets are located in the PRC.

TR —FRERE .

oS
N\

(a)

EHMETEDWES @

(2) EHELEPWESR @)
MECENERESE @
VA 55 4 B %.I%%Ef:ﬁﬁﬂﬁ%%L
BE BRI A S A TS B
BEBAREIREEEED BRI

EBASEESENFAR - R2021F2A KA
RIS EE - BMEEEREEEEETE
FMSEENEERR ERBE BEEE

BETEBNTER  EMERDSREER
AR ER A 8RR - BRI 5 308 1E
HEEENEBESEEENEHEXE  ®
2021F12A3IB & HEE BN AR FE
BHAEARE220E T - # 2202296 A30H

WHefE A Hif - S B TR B EH AR BN
BEE SRHSEREESRSEBSARAK

ReFEA B A ARK6IET - REEEM

HEERERA NN BERETBBENIAAN
SEARR  BBERLOIHIAENAER

HEMRBRERE NIRRT - 1202256
F30H F12021912 A31 H 7N & B 45 fn 4 15
EREENEHRERERT -

/'\1‘:'31-‘-1”\
REEGESEEARECRRINTESRELRL
HEETHEREEE BEEEHADBRE
R RXERDEEER - BREERN Ll s
TER D B IE

EEERANEEER —ETEAREEY

B 7E b B 45 —ﬂ%%&EE@EIk (A
B - R - A B S E B E -
BB AT R e B - 7 A B 7 — (B AT
BT
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8

(1)
(a)

(b)

(c)

80

RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED PARTY N BBIFBERRERS
TRANSACTIONS
Information of the parent company (1) B2EER
General information of the parent company: (a) BRABEXREBER :
Place of registration Nature of business
& it it E3 23
Haikou Meilan Haikou, Hainan Province Air transportation and ground handling services
BOXER e EaAm 1R it i 2 8 & Kot X IR AR 7S

Registered capital and changes in registered capital of
the parent company:

(b)

BRAREMERAREEZL

30 June 2022 and
31 December 2021
20226 H30B &
2021%12H31H

BOXER

Haikou Meilan

4,137,105,499

On 13 March 2021, Haikou Meilan was included in HNA Group
Substantial Consolidated Restructuring. On 31 October 2021, Hainan
High Court ruled on the restructuring plan of the HNA Group Substantial
Consolidated Restructuring. According to the implementation of HNA
Group Substantive Consolidated Restructuring, Hainan Airport Industrial
Investment Co., Ltd. directly holds around 46.81% of the equity
of Haikou Meilan, and becomes the largest shareholder of Haikou
Meilan. Hainan Airport Industrial Investment Co., Ltd. is affiliated to
the State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration Committee of
Hainan Provincial Government ("Hainan SASAC'). On 9 March 2022,
Haikou Meilan completed the industrial and commercial registration
procedures for the change of registered capital and shareholders.

The percentages of shareholding and voting rights in the
Company held by the parent company:

(c)

MN2021E3 8130 B O EBFE WA A G &= H
BEEAHEE - H2021F10A318  BE sk
HEIMEEEEAHEETE - REBESME
EEEAHERNEERNER  SHKEE
¥REFERAFEEZEFTBEEOERHL46.81%
MR AEOEXEMNE—ARE - SEES
EXREERACBBREEEARTREEE
EEEBRLZES([(BEEEEZ]) - 12022
FIAA  BOEWTR TEMEAR - RESE
EMIMELFE-

[SENSE RN RS §n A IR PPN
el

30 June 2022 and 31 December 2021
2022%6H30H %2021%12831H
Shareholding (%) Voting rights (%)
R LB % AR %

Haikou Meilan

EOER

50.19 50.19
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8 RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED PARTY
TRANSACT'ONS (Continued)

(2) Information of other related parties

N BEBRIFBRERRERZ @

(2) HitbEEBRBLENR

Relationship with the Group
AL B MBR

Hainan SASAC
BHEEREER

Global Consumer Goods (Hainan) Trading Company Limited

HBBES (5R) HHARAT

Hainan Bo'ao Airport Management Co., Itd.

BEBEESEEARAF

Hainan Haikong Environment Technology Holding Co., Ltd.
8RR R R RA T

Hainan Haila Business Management Co., Ltd.

BESNREEEARAF

Hainan Property Management Group Co., Ltd. ("Hainan PM") "
BEMEEERMAERAR(SEWEEE])"

Zhiyu Technology Company Limited
BFHEBRAR

According to the implementation of HNA Group Substantive Consolidated
Restructuring, the following companies are no longer related parties of the
Group in April 2022:

HNA Group
8 i 5= =)

Hainan Traffic Administration Holdings Company Limited
(“Hainan Traffic Holdings")
BEXEERERAF (MERER])

Haikou Meilan International Airport Passenger Transport Co., Ltd.
BOERBERRSTEBRETLNA

HNA Holding Group Co., Ltd.
BREEEEGRAF

HNA Tourism Group Co. Ltd
IR B 5 B A R A A

Hainan Traffic & Service Co. Ltd
V& B A AR 5 A BR A A

HNA Hotel (Group) Co., Ltd.
BRUBE (RE) BR AR

Has significant influence on the parent company

HERAEERTE

Under control of Hainan SASAC
g A BE L miE

Under control of Hainan SASAC
XEmMAEBREZ R

Under control of Hainan SASAC
g A BE L miE

Under control of Hainan SASAC
XEmMAEBREZ R

Under control of Hainan SASAC
g E BE L miE

Under control of Hainan SASAC
XBMEBEEZ R

BB EBEE S HEESENTIEL

PR 2R BIR20224F4 T F.23 78 5 E R H 77 -

Has significant influence on the parent company
HERNRBEARE

Has significant influence on the parent company
HEARNBEAVE

Under control of HNA Group
2B M EE R E

Under control of HNA Group
XA E 81Tl

Under control of HNA Group
2B M EE R ES

Under control of HNA Group
XA E 81Tl

Under control of HNA Group
2B M EE R ES
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RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED PARTY
TRANSACT'ONS (Continued)

Information of other related parties (Continued)

N BERIFBRERRERZ @

(2) HtExEB@BEH 1B R @

Relationship with the Group

BR 7K 52 (8] 1Y B R
Hainan HNA International Hotel Management Co., Ltd. Under control of HNA Group
BEEMEEREEERERNBRAR B e okt

HNA Finance Company
LB 7 A R

Honor (Sanya) Aviation Service Co., Ltd.

ER(ZR)MERBERQA

Eking Technology Co., Ltd.
SRR N R A A

Hainan New Generation Lottery Co., Ltd.

BEMETFEHMXBRAR

Yangpu Guoxing Construction Co., Ltd. (“Yangpu Guoxing”)
FERBEETIRERERAF (FHER])

Hainan HNA China Duty Free Merchandise Co., Ltd.
BEEMTRETHMBR AR

According to the implementation of Hainan Airlines Restructuring,
the following companies are no longer related parties of the Group in
December 2021:

Hainan Airlines

eI RS

Tianjin Airlines Co., Ltd.
REMZBEREERF

Lucky Air Co., Ltd.
ERETEMEEREEAT

Guangxi Beibu Gulf Airlines Co., Ltd.
BErEiLBEMmERRET AR

Chang An Airlines Co., Ltd.
REeMEBREEDF

Western Airlines Co., Ltd.
AHMMEBRETA A

Under control of HNA Group
X8 g B /1l

Under control of HNA Group
8 s E H

Under control of HNA Group
X8 g B 8 1 )

Under control of HNA Group
5 A S B 2 )

Under control of Hainan Traffic Holdings

R AT AR B

Under common control of HNA Group and other
companies

SOE M5 B E A B /Y R
W IEGARI T ERGZBTIENR KT el
2021F 125 TH B KR EEFFHT -

Under control of Hainan SASAC
SIEMEBAE N

Under control of Hainan SASAC
g A BE Z e iE

Under control of Hainan SASAC
SIEMEBAE N

Under control of Hainan SASAC
g A BE Z e iE

Under control of Hainan SASAC
SIEMEBAE N

Under control of HNA Group
X8 i 5 B A1
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8 RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED PARTY N BEBRFBERERRERZ @
TRANSACT'ONS (Continued)

(2) Information of other related parties (Continued) (2) EtEEBB B R @
Relationship with the Group
BEAKENER
HNA Cargo Co., Ltd. Under control of HNA Group
BMEEBRAR 8 s E H
Suparna Airlines Co., Ltd. Under control of HNA Group
WA ERD AR X g B /Y1 I
Hainan Airlines Sales Co., Ltd. Under control of HNA Group
BEEMMEHERR AR 8 s E H
Beijing Capital Airlines Co., Ltd. Under control of HNA Group
EREBMEBRAA X g B /Y1 I
Note: Hainan PM was renamed from Hainan HNA Property Management Co., e O BEYEEEN2022F1 AR EREMMES
Ltd. to Hainan Property Management Group Co., Ltd. in January 2022. BRNERATNERASEAYVEEERNDAER
NS
(3) Significant related party transactions (3) EXRBERS
(a) Pricing policies (a) EEHEE
The Group's pricing on goods purchased from related parties, and e E [m) R B O SR BB Y E S DA N e A B 5 R 4
services provided to or received from related parties are based on market LSBT ES AN ERATISEEE
price. Lease payments are negotiated by both parties involved in the BTEEM  HEMANESTHREMISE
lease arrangements and by making reference to the market price. The BREEFTRREBET  AEBFHREBE 6
interest rates of deposits maintained with related parties of the Group FHRHMRZ2ZBmERITRATERFREE
are mutually agreed by taking into consideration of deposit interest rates HEEET
of commercial banks over the same period.
(b) Purchase of goods or receiving of services (b) HBEYRIEZLTE
Six months ended 30 June
B Z6H30H LL61EA
2022 2021 2022 2021
20224 20214 2022%F 20214
The Group The Group The Company The Company
AEE REH b YN AN/
Related parties under control 28 & BT
of HNA Group BAHE T 1,912,413 32,905,052 1,898,113 28,567,360
Haikou Meilan 80X 30,150,020 13,692,872 21,403,339 10,566,533
Related parties under control XBEEBEEZEHN
of Hainan SASAC ki 41,768,597 - 38,981,349 -

73,831,030 46,497,924 62,282,801 39,133,893
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8 RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED PARTY

TRANSACT'ONS (Continued)

(3) Significant related party transactions (Continued)

N BERIFBRERRERZ @

(3) EXBAEXRSZ @

(c) Rendering of services (c) I1IB{HtEi%
Six months ended 30 June
B Z6H30H L61EA

2022 2021 2022 2021
20224 20214 20224 20214
The Group The Group The Company The Company
rEE REH AT PIN/NG)|

Related parties under control ZBEAREZEHN
of Hainan SASAC A 12,331,092 168,048,970 12,331,091 155,422,702

Related parties under control X8 EE A
of HNA Group ki 681,412 52,381,127 681,412 44,751,306
13,012,504 220,430,097 13,012,503 200,174,008
(d) Leases (d) #HE
Rental income in the current year with the Group as the lessor: NEFBEALHEAFEERANMBEEWA -
Six months ended 30 June
B Z6H30H L61EA

2022 2021 2022 2021
20224 20214 20225 20214
The Group The Group The Company The Company
TEE rEE NN NN
Ruigang Logistics B - - 11,366,524 11,366,524
Meilan Freight EWEE - - 9,756,328 1,218,872
Meilan Airport Hotel ES LN - - 7,380,183 7,361,599
- - 28,503,035 19,946,995

Increase of right-of-use assets in the current period with the Group as

the lessee:

REBERFET AN EREEE

Six months ended 30 June

B Z6H30H LL6fE A
2022 2021 2022 2021
20225 20214 2022F 20214
The Group The Group The Company The Company
AEHE REH NN NN
Haikou Meilan EOXER - 34,746,635 - -

Interest costs on lease liabilities in the current period with the Group as

the lessee:

REBERAM T RNBAENHESENEX
H o

Six months ended 30 June

B Z6H30H 1L61EA
2022 2021 2022 2021
2022%F 20214 2022%F 20214
The Group The Group The Company The Company
AEE AEE D AR
Haikou Meilan BOER 1,836,696 1,836,696 1,339,607 1,339,607

34
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For the six months ended 30 June 2022 #£20224%6 /530H 1618/ 4
(All amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated) (& #5875} - & 888 7 BA K ¥or)

8 RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED PARTY N BEBRFBERERRERZ @
TRANSACT'ONS (Continued)

(3) Significant related party transactions (Continued) (3) EXBAEXRSZ @
(e) Co-borrowing (e) HEEX

Six months ended 30 June

HZE6H30H k618 A
2022 2021
Haikou Meilan BOXEM 20224 20214
— Ending balance —HAR 458 3,232,000,000 3,232,000,000
For details, please refer to Note 8(5)(c). FABERE2RME\G)C) -
(f)  Guarantee received (f) BEZER
Six months ended 30 June
HZE6H30H k618 A
2022 2021
20224 20214
Haikou Meilan EOXERH - 403,660,411
(g) Remuneration of key management (g) EAEEIE A ESFHN
Six months ended 30 June
EH Z6H30H LL6{E A
2022 2021
20224 20214
Remuneration of key management FREEASH 2,239,796 2,578,373
Key management personnel include executive directors, non-executive AREEABBREARANITES  JERTE
directors, president, vice president, company secretary, chief financial T8 BIAE - ARWE BHEeERE
officer and supervisors of the Company. =o
(4) Balances with related parties (4) EXBABSREE
(a) Cash at bank and on hand (a) E¥ES

30 June 2022 31 December 2021 30 June 2022 31 December 2021
2022%6830H 2021%12A31H 202256 A30H 202112 A31H

The Group The Group The Company The Company
rEE T&EE PN VNN
HNA Finance Company R R NG - 34,661,125 - 15,671

—E-—gaERE - SEEFEREERAHERAT 3D
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8 RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED PARTY
TRANSACT'ONS (Continued)

(4) Balances with related parties (Continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

86

Accounts receivable

30 June 2022

(4) EXBH S ATE @

(b) FEUWLHERR

31 December 2021

30 June 2022

N BABTEERHE

———
A

X5 @

31 December 2021

2022%6H30AH 202112 A31H 2022%6H30AR 2021F12A31H
The Group The Group The Company The Company
TEE REE b N/N| /NG|
Related parties under control XEMEABER
of Hainan SASAC I R R 14,989,702 4,431,828 14,989,702 4,431,828
Related parties under control g s BT
of HNA Group L - 404,629 - 404,629
Related parties under common XEMEEEE
control of HNA Group and RElEEF 6
other companies ) - 35,343 - 35,343
Ruigang Logistics iyt - - 106,770,649 94,302,292
Meilan Airport Hotel e i - - 70,405,602 67,386,850
Others Hith - 832,616 - 764,514
14,989,702 5,704,416 192,165,953 167,325,456
Other receivables (c) HfbEWK
30 June 2022 31 December 2021 30 June 2022 31 December 2021
202246830H 202112 A31H 202256 A30H 2021%12A31H
The Group The Group The Company The Company
r~EE rEE KDF iN/NS|
Haikou Meilan BOEH 41,347,990 39,347,109 - -
Related parties under control g s B
of HNA Group )y - 8,328,582 - 6,598,243
Meilan Airport Hotel EHHISHE - - 54,500,209 50,220,565
Meilan Freight EHEE - - - 18,000,000
Others Hith - 7,832 - 7,832
41,347,990 47,683,523 54,500,209 74,826,640
Accounts payable (d) EER
30 June 2022 31 December 2021 30 June 2022 31 December 2021
2022F6H30AH 2021%12A31H 202256 H30H 2021%12A31H
The Group The Group The Company The Company
rEE REE b N/N| /NG|
Related parties under control XEHMEABER
of Hainan SASAC 5 89 BB 58,368,319 59,547,987 56,221,530 56,531,442
Related parties under ZEMERES M
control of HNA Group Ly - 19,927,153 - 19,922,553
Haikou Meilan HOER 1,137,784 1,061,332 - -
Others Hith - 14,242,522 - 940,439
59,506,103 94,778,994 56,221,530 77,394,434
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8 RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED PARTY N BEBRFBERERRERZ @
TRANSACT'ONS (Continued)

(4) Balances with related parties (Continued) (4) EXBH S ATE @
(e) Other payables (e) HMEAR

30 June 2022

31 December 2021

30 June 2022

31 December 2021

2022%6H830H 2021912 A31H 202266 H30H 2021912 A31H
The Group The Group The Company The Company
rEE rEE ¥V /NG|
Haikou Meilan BOER 1,577,398,045 1,628,5622,014 1,567,484,021 1,606,724,829
Related parties under control XEBHEBER
of Hainan SASAC 13 | 6 BB 7 3,714,413 1,798,066 110,000 110,000
Related parties under control 28 E BT IR
of HNA Group ) - 164,174,265 - 162,534,265
Related parties under control R RZERAE HIH
of Hainan Traffic Holdings )i - 7,755,004 - 7,755,004
Ruigang Logistics bt i - - 54,837,036 16,729,542
Meilan Freight XHEE - - 22,902,031 93,907,379
Meilan Airport Hotel EHHIZAE - - 9,000 -
Others =i} - 1,113,800 - 1,113,800
1,581,112,458 1,803,363,149 1,645,342,088 1,888,874,819
(f) Long-term payables (f) REHEMSR
30 June 2022 31 December 2021 30 June 2022 31 December 2021
2022%6H30AH 202112 A31H 2022%6H30A 2021F12A31H
The Group The Group The Company The Company
rEE rEE PN ZN/NS|
Haikou Meilan BOER 774,133,098 774,133,098 774,133,098 774,133,098
(g) Directors’ remuneration payable (g) FEE=FHEN
30 June 2022 31 December 2021 30 June 2022 31 December 2021
202246H830H 202112 A31H 202256 A30H 202112 A31H
The Group The Group The Company The Company
rEH ~EE ¥ NN /NG|
Directors’ remuneration EEEHM 597,183 591,437 597,183 591,437
(h) Lease liabilities (h)y HEEE
30 June 2022 31 December 2021 30 June 2022 31 December 2021
202246A30H 2021%12A31H 20226 A30H 2021%F12A31H
The Group The Group The Company The Company
rEE REE NN /NG|
Haikou Meilan EOXEHE 86,311,838 100,719,585 63,712,203 62,846,779
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(b)

88

RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED PARTY
TRANSACT'ONS (Continued)

Significant asset acquisition and cooperative

AN

HEBHLTEAERERS @

(5) EXHBATEEWNBREERE

investment project with related parties 15 B
Terminal Expansion Project (a) MIHEBIERTIRE
On 26 August 2011 and 12 December 2012, the Company entered R2011F8H26H &2012F128128 * KA A
into a Land Use Right Transfer Agreement and an Investment and SO EBHEREEKISE R IGE -« fruh
Construction Agreement with Haikou Meilan in respect of construction BHEREE TREUAREMmESRETIE ([f
of an international terminal, expansion of west gallery of the terminal WBERIR) DAY T i E BEEE R
and a number of ancillary projects in the Meilan Airport (the “Terminal FEREEEBHTE
Expansion Project”).
Pursuant to the Land Use Right Transfer Agreement, in order to facilitate WETHHEREEZG T AARIIRARK
the construction of the Terminal Expansion Project and the possession 31,289,734 L W B & M8 O X8 E AN A 74
of relevant property title certificate(s) as a whole by Haikou Meilan, the 126 L A - LAERIBE O EBETM
Company will transfer the land use rights for a site area of 125 acres to VHIBER TR T RS REECRSMUEEZE
Haikou Meilan at a consideration of RMB31,289,734. As at 30 June 2022, EE o #H 22022F6A30H AR R 25t
the Company had received the consideration of land use right transfer of AEOXEHINN I HEREEZERARE
RMB31,128,973 from Haikou Meilan. 31,128,9737L °
Pursuant to the Investment and Construction Agreement, Haikou Meilan RIBINERSHT BOEFAE KM uLE
is responsible for the completion of the Terminal Expansion Project, and BETREITESR  WAEARMLEERZTRE
undertakes that, upon completion of the construction of the Terminal BTHERAALNGEEMGERETIRZZEE
Expansion Project and before the transfer of the assets of the Terminal Bl A5 ) AT 153 70 o 7 B sk b AR IR
Expansion Project to the Company, Haikou Meilan shall not transfer or EIRZAMEE: BARAZAKLLEMILE
dispose of any assets of the Terminal Expansion Project to any third BETIRBZBEREN ZERPHEEMUGE
party, and the Company is exclusively entitled to operate the Terminal FEEIRMMGEEREREZIELEET
Expansion Project. The construction of the international terminal and 22 2 Bl R20134 F120154 58 T I % A E A
the auxiliary projects, and the west gallery expansion project and the (B sEPU(B)) ° & 1E2022F6 A308 © tHE H %
auxiliary projects had been completed and put into use in 2013 and 2015 Wt EMEREE N ERIED -
respectively (Note 4(6)). As at 30 June 2022, the settlement of land
considerations and property title certificate(s) of these projects were still
in progress.
Terminal Complex Project (b) YhAI4REEE
30 June 31 December
2022 2021
2022%6H308 2021412A31H
Construction payable to settle through DA% HARE 5 sl R B B 2 5 2
Yangpu Guoxing TR 320,613,682 331,894,545

As at 30 June 2022, according to the construction service agreement
of Terminal Complex Project and the three-parties agreement signed
by the Company, Yangpu Guoxing and related Terminal Complex
Project constructors (“Project Constructors”), the Company had made
payments totalling RMB1,357,255,949 to the project constructors
through Yangpu Guoxing. According to the budget of Terminal Complex
Project and related signed construction agreement, the Company
estimated to make payments totalling RMB320,613,682 through Yangpu
Guoxing to related Project Constructors in future.

H £2022F6A30H IF - IRIBFUH AR AEER
R 75 17 & DA R AKX &)~ 0% R B R0 T AT AR
AEITRAE((IRABREDZEN =%
FOARBE R BEBFHEEMZE TEA
EE S TR ARYN,357,255,9497T ©
BEMAGABREBENAMOCEENTE
ARMNEEBR  ARAEFUNEHREES
BRFHEERNAEIRAERIMAHIER
B ARME320,613,6827T °
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RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED PARTY
TRANSACT'ONS (Continued)

Significant asset acquisition and cooperative
investment project with related parties (Continued)

Phase Il Expansion Project

On 21 August 2015, the Company and Haikou Meilan entered into
an Investment and Construction Agreement in respect of the joint
construction of Phase |l Expansion Project, which has specified the
allocation of the construction sub-projects and the ownership of
the relevant assets of sub-projects constructed by the two parties
respectively. The Company undertook the construction of the terminal
and related facilities while Haikou Meilan undertook the construction
of the airport runway and related facilities. As Haikou Meilan was the
project representative of Phase Il Expansion Project and the Company
was not a project representative and could not become a contracting
party of the related contract or a payer of related payments, the costs
and expenses incurred by the Company during the construction of the
project were paid by Haikou Meilan on behalf of the Company. Haikou
Meilan agreed to register the relevant assets constituting the sub-project
constructed by the Group under the ownership of the Company after the
completion and acceptance of construction of the Phase Il Expansion
Project, including but not limited to the land use right and the property
ownership of buildings. Meanwhile, Haikou Meilan irrevocably agreed,
promised and confirmed that the Company had the right to occupy, use,
benefit from and dispose of the assets constituting the sub-projects
constructed by the Company without any payment to Haikou Meilan or
restriction of laws and regulations of China until the title certificates of
the assets had been registered under the name of the Company.

According to the Investment and Construction Agreement, the budgeted
costs of the parts to be constructed by the Company amounted to
approximately RMB7.16 billion. On 11 May 2020, the Company signed a
supplementary agreement with Haikou Meilan, the budgeted costs of the
parts to be constructed by the Company increased to RMB7.65 billion.
On 2 December 2021, the Phase Il Expansion Project was completed
and put into use after acceptance by Civil Aviation Administration.

Specifically for financing the construction of Phase Il Expansion
Project, Haikou Meilan, as the borrower, and the Company, as the
co-borrower, have entered into a RMB Syndicated Loan Agreement for
the Phase Il Expansion Project of Haikou Meilan International Airport
(the "Syndicated Loan Agreement”) with China Development Bank,
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China and Agricultural Bank of China
with a principal of RMB7.8 billion and a term of 20 years. As at 30 June
2022, the interest rate of the Syndicated Loan Agreement was 3.9%,
with the interest being paid quarterly. The principal would be repaid in
instalments starting on 21 December 2022, with the last repayment due
on 29 November 2037. According to the Syndicated Loan Agreement, the
Company and Haikou Meilan jointly undertake the repayment obligation
for each loan drawn down under the Syndicated Loan Agreement and are
jointly and equally liable for the debt repayment (the "Joint Repayment
Commitment”). The obligations of Haikou Meilan stipulated in the
Syndicated Loan Agreement, such as draw-down and repayment, event
of default and liability of default, are all applicable to the Company.

TR _FHHRE c BEXHEKREEROERAR

AN

(5)

(c)

HEBHLTEEARERS @

EXBEABAIEERNBEREERE
HE @

—HERIEE

R2016F8HA21H AR R EEBOERHM LA
AE_HERBEEIIVREES RS HTE
FEEERBEBEND BN RS EZIEE 2 HE
BENBEESRE  AREAEHMILELARM
i O ERAEMISIE BB RE - [
BEOXMIEA—_HERZBEE ZEEREK @
RARFEREEHHEENRAREY © B
AAGBWIHBEBERRMEEIXNAEEEONE
WHABEBRBOINS  WHEERBFOE
MY EMlRIE - BOEFREN _BHIEE T
REBWEARARAEECEBRAEEER
HEzHBEEZHABE BREETRR LI
FREREFZDERFE  RNSTARHD
RS  AEMER RUAKRAARRAEELE
RANRERBEE 2EERBEN  ARAH
BEBARESOXZEH I NTAREZERES
BlEA AR ENBRT A FH 2%
MHEEBKANTRRER ZEE -

BRIBEEREREHE  ARBEBEEZHBH BT
WESEHNBARETI6ETT - 2020654
MBARAESOEHEEHAHTE A2
RIAEEHDRESBEIEME ARKETI65E T
M20214F12A28  —HiEREBE IEE R T
WK ERM BB U AES -

BEBR_HIEZER  BOEBIEAEBRA
ARAEIEBERMBRA - HERFABERT - F
B IERTRNERIREPEEERITRG
ERARFVOEOXHBEEH#E —HiEET
BBEEAREESREAERAR) (EEER
&R  ESBEEAARKETISET - HiR A20
FEWREE R - 12022668308 REEK
FIERAE39% @ FIBEBFTEIN—K  KEER
2022F12A2VEFABDHIER SR —2£5HE
HHIA2037%11 8298 - RIFFEERAR -
ARREEOXEMEEERARBETITNE—
FERHRAAEERER HEREEEESE
EET((HRABREE]) - REERERNANY
REOEWERNIERRER  BOEMH - EH
EASERNHERZLEARARQF -
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RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED PARTY
TRANSACT'ONS (Continued)

Significant asset acquisition and cooperative
investment project with related parties (Continued)

Phase Il Expansion Project (Continued)

The Company and Haikou Meilan entered into an agreement to specify
the allocation of a loan of RMB7.8 billion in the Syndicated Loan
Agreement, and the Company and Haikou Meilan were allocated RMB3.9
billion respectively. Other key terms of the agreement are set out below:

(i) The airport land use (Note 4(8)) and the buildings (Note 4(6)) of
the Company were pledged as collateral for the Syndicated Loan.
Meanwhile, the Company agreed to pledge Phase Il Expansion
Project land, aboveground buildings and the assets arising from
the completion of the Phase Il Expansion Project (including but not
limited to land and buildings above ground) as the collateral for the
Syndicated Loan. The Company has not obtained the relevant land
use rights for the Phase Il Expansion Project. The Company would
handle the mortgage registration formalities according to the land
ownership. Details of investment properties, fixed assets and land
use rights of the Phase Il Expansion Project of the Company are
disclosed in Note 4(5), Note 4(6) and Note 4(8), respectively;

(ii) Haikou Meilan pledged its own part of the land use rights and
buildings, Phase Il Expansion Project land and aboveground
buildings (the mortgage registration formalities would be
handled according to the land ownership), assets arising from
the completion of Phase Il Expansion Project (including but not
limited to land and buildings above ground). Haikou Meilan has not
obtained the relevant land use rights for the Phase Il Expansion
Project. Haikou Meilan will complete the registration of the pledge
of assets after the land use right certificates are obtained;

As at 30 June 2022, the draw-down of the Syndicated Loan totalled to
approximately RMB5.18 billion, of which Haikou Meilan has drawn down
RMB3.24 billion and the Company has drawn down RMB1.94 billion.
Meanwhile, Haikou Meilan had not obtained the relevant land use rights
for the Phase Il Expansion Project, and the registration of the pledge of
assets for the Phase Il Expansion Project were not yet completed.

In respect of the amounts of the Syndicated Loan accumulatively drawn
down by Haikou Meilan, the Company should consider the expected
credit losses of the Joint Repayment Commitment, the Company
evaluated the expected credit losses provision for Joint Repayment
Commitments on the basis of expected credit losses developed by the
main parameters including probability of default, loss given default and
exposure undertook by the Company for Joint Repayment Commitment,
and has accordingly recognised “other current liabilities — Joint
Repayment Commitment” of RMB2,585,600 as at 30 June 2022.
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(5)

(c)

HEBHLTEAERERS @

EAXBEBAIEEWBREERSE
15 B #)

“HiEEEE @\
ANFEEOEWT IS - AFTRHALD 7 HE
BOZEW > HRBRETRARPRARBISET
EXHEENHER ARAREOZEHERAEHR
EHREHARMBIVET  HiF BHEER
BE

(i) ARFAKS A (EME) REERE
g2 (BIEEPN(6)) A 3R B B R IR LR 4R 4
R-RAE ARBEE H-HAERA
BRtR EREY  BRARTZKNZ
HEZHEEEE (BHEETRR LR
 EREEY) RIREE FIRHHEIRER -
ARRAE —HEZEE B AR AR
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& & E K D AR B A R R
(5) ~ M REET(6) AN F FEPI(8)
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(All amounts in RMB Yuan unless otherwise stated) (B 455t 855} » & BEE (L BA R K TT)

CONTINGENCIES

The Company started to prepare for the issuance of additional domestic
shares and no more than 200 million new H shares in 2016. On 29
September 2019, the Company entered into a subscription agreement
with Aero Infrastructure Holding Company Limited (the "Applicant’),
pursuant to which the Applicant agreed to subscribe and the Company
agreed to offer 200 million new H shares of the Company provided
that the pre-conditions, including but not limited to the approval from
China Securities Regulatory Commission (“CSRC") obtaining, can be
fulfilled on or before 25 June 2020 or otherwise being waived by the
contractual parties. After entering into the subscription agreement, the
Company has carried out a series of actions to complete the agreement.
However, as of the expiry date of the authorisation, the preconditions
of the completion have not been fully fulfilled. On 23 December
2020, the Applicant filed an arbitration with Hong Kong International
Arbitration Centre ("HKIAC") claiming that the Company had violated the
subscription agreement and requesting a compensation of damage not
exceeding HKD6,962 million and relevant arbitration fees. The Company
is of the view that the Company has not violated the subscription
agreement as claimed by the Applicant, and will take legal measures to
raise a strong defence during the arbitration process. As at the date of
these the financial statements, the arbitration is in progress. Taking into
account the opinion of the third party law firm, the management is of the
view that the Company has no breach of the contract as claimed by the
applicant and it is less likely that the damage claimed by the applicant
will be supported by the arbitration center. The Company has not made
any provision for the Arbitration Case.

In addition, the Company obtained a loan from Aero Infrastructure
Investment Company Limited with a principal of USD 75,000,000 in
August 2019, which was pledged by 100% equity of Ruigang Logistics
and 51% equity of Meilan Freight held by the Company. The loan was
repaid on 8 July 2020. As at 30 June 2022, the pledge of equity interests
of these two entities was yet to be released.

EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

There were no important events affecting the Group that have occurred
since 30 June 2022.

TR _FHHRE c BEXHEKREEROERAR
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11 OPERATING LEASE PROCEEDS AFTERTHE +t-&EE8E@XRHEZKEHEWR

12

(1)

92

BALANCE SHEET DATE

As the lessor, the Group’s undiscounted lease proceeds receivable after
the balance sheet date are as follows:

A
AREEBLTA - EE A EEA %R
EURED KRS BERINT -

30 June 31 December

2022 2021

2022%6H308 20214128318

Within 1 year —F AR 40,932,864 25,424,491

1 to 2 years — 5| -4 31,578,246 7,110,394

2 to 3 years —R=4F 28,390,832 977,908

100,901,942 33,612,793

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISKS T2/ T AREERE

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market NEFHNRE EHemEESEBLER : M5

risk (primarily interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group's
overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of
financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the
Group's financial performance.

Interest rate risk

The Group's interest rate risk mainly arises from long-term
interest-bearing borrowings including long-term borrowings and long-term
payables. Financial liabilities issued at floating rates expose the Group
to cash flow interest rate risk, while those issued at fixed rates expose
the Group to fair value interest rate risk. The Group determines the
relative proportions of its fixed rate and floating rate contracts depending
on the prevailing market conditions. As at 30 June 2022, the Group's
Syndicated Loan was denominated in RMB with a fixed interest rate, of
which the amount was RMB1,944,000,000 (31 December 2021: floating
rate contracts of RMB1,944,000,000).

The Group's finance department continuously monitors the interest rate
position of the Group. Increases in interest rates will increase the cost of
new interest-bearing borrowings and the interest expenses with respect
to the Group's outstanding floating rate interest bearing borrowings, and
therefore could have a material adverse effect on the Group’s financial
performance. Management makes adjustments timely with reference
to the latest market conditions and may enter into interest rate swap
agreements to mitigate its exposure to interest rate risk. For the six
months ended 30 June 2022 and 2021, the Group did not enter into any
interest rate swap agreements.

(1)

R (EZRFERER) =8k MRS E
e ARBEERBORREEFIHHSRTS
MAAITER M - DREEEAEERBEEAD
EETNZE -

F = & B

REMNANEEABEIBEEIRNEHERIREY
BNRERPSEER - FHANENERHAE
FAEEEBRSRENRRAR  BETH XL
SREBEEAEEABEAABAENERAR - &
EEREESOMBBRICREEAEMNRRF
AR A R H 6 o 72202266 A30H -
REBBEEERTAARETENETHERAR
&% R AR 1,944,000,0007T (2021412 A 31
H : AR1,944,000,000THZBFERAR) ©

7 S5 [ B 7% 0 P45 4 B A S I ) R o R
EFE RS S EB KA AR A EE
REBEOAZB R R RMNHESEBNFE X
e THAREENMEEEEEEAN A
2 BEEESKRBERNOMISMNLEELR
B EUEHEURRETNEEBRNRIIRE
7 = @R - #81E202246 A30H 1E61E A BAfE
N EE2021F6 A30H 1E61E A HIfE A L B &
MEFH]ZHE -
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISKS

(Continued)

Credit risk

The credit risk of the Group mainly arises from monetary funds accounts
receivable, other receivables and the provision of Joint Repayment
Commitment for the Syndicated Loan drawn by Haikou Meilan. As at
the balance sheet date, the carrying amount of the Group's financial
assets has represented the maximum credit risk exposure of the Group;
the maximum credit risk exposure off balance sheet is the maximum
amount of RMB3.24 billion to be paid for fulfilment of Joint Repayment
Commitment for the drawn Syndicated Loan drawn by Haikou Meilan.

Liquidity risk

Cash flow forecasting is performed by each subsidiary of the Group for
its own cash flow forecasting. The Group monitors rolling forecasts of
the Group’s short-term and long-term liquidity requirements to ensure
it has sufficient cash and securities that are readily convertible to cash
to meet operational needs, while maintaining sufficient headroom on its
undrawn committed borrowing facilities from major financial institutions
so that the Group does not breach borrowing limits or covenants on any
of its borrowing facilities to meet the short-term and long-term liquidity
requirements.

As at 30 June 2022, the risk assessment of cash flows that made by
management was detailed in Note 2(1).

These interim financial statements do not include all financial risk
management information and disclosures required in the annual financial
statements, and should be read in conjunction with the Group’s annual
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021.

There have been no significant changes in the risk management
department or in any risk management policies since 31 December 2021.

FAIR VALUE ESTIMATES

The level in which fair value measurement is categorised is determined
by the level of the fair value hierarchy of the lowest level input that is
significant to the entire fair value measurement:

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets
or liabilities.

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly.

Level 3: Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

TR _FHHRE c BEXHEKREEROERAR
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13
(1)

(2)

94

FAIR VALUE ESTIMATES (continued)

Assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis
As at 30 June 2022, the assets measured at fair value on a recurring
basis are listed as follows according to the above three levels:

=

(1)

AAEEMETT@®

FENUAAABEFENEE
1202296 4308 + H M AR £ B EE B
AERCR=ERRIRMT :

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E-—BX BB E=ZBIX &%
Financial assets TREE
Financial assets held for trading — RS HE E-
Investments in equity RGUERERTA
instruments held for trading & 21,444,074 - - 21,444,074
Other non-current financial assets - H b IE R84 L& -
Beneficial interests = FE Uk a5 - - 48,862,156 48,862,156
21,444,074 - 48,862,156 70,306,230

The Group takes the date on which events causing the transfers between
the levels take place as the timing specific for recognising the transfers.
There is no transfer between Level 1 and Level 2 for the current period.

For financial instruments traded in an active market, the Group
determines its fair value based on its quoted price in an active market.

Assets and liabilities not measured at fair value

but for which the fair value is disclosed
Financial assets and financial liabilities of the Group measured at
amortised cost mainly include receivables, payables, Syndicated Loans
for the Phase Il Expansion Project and long-term payables.

The carrying amount of the financial assets and liabilities not measured
at fair value is a reasonable approximation of their fair value.

(2)
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14 NOTES TO THE COMPANY’'S FINANCIAL T A5 B i Rk MY
STATEMENTS

(1) Long-term equity investments

(1) RMKRERE

30 June 31 December
2022 2021
2022 6H30H 2021%12A31H
Subsidiaries /NG
- Unlisted companies —JFETAA 15,200,000 15,200,000
Associated company iR NET
— Unlisted companies —JEETMRA] 8,349,513 12,848,969

Less: Provision for impairment of long-term

o RHBE R AR EER

equity investments _ _

23,549,513 28,048,969

There is no significant restriction on the realisation of long-term
investments.

ARBTNFERMBRELBRNEANRS -

(2)

Revenue, cost of sales, and general and
administrative expenses

(2) ERBWAMERREK - EEEH

Six months ended 30 June

EH Z6H30H LL61E A
2022 2021
Revenue EERA 20225 20214
Aeronautical business: Mz R
Passenger service income RE RSB 98,063,591 146,673,932
Ground handling service income b 8 R 75 & 59,392,918 71,210,193
Fees and related charges on aircraft take-off TR B[R K AR R Uk B
and landing 45,552,220 52,483,801
203,008,729 270,367,926
Non-aeronautical business: IEM M -
Franchise income FFET A & IR 230,507,465 374,426,739
Rental income a2l A 60,557,040 46,332,741
VIP room income BEEERA 20,005,729 38,776,210
Other income =N 39,652,166 48,595,645
350,722,400 508,131,335
553,731,129 778,499,261
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14 NOTES TO THE COMPANY'S FINANCIAL T A7) 8 7% 3, 2% B &
STATEMENTS (Continued)

113

(2) Revenue, cost of sales, and general and (2) BEWANBERAX -EEEH
administrative expenses (Continued) (1)
Cost of sales and general and administrative expenses mainly include the BERALREEEHATFIEZEHATEE#EK

following items:

Six months ended 30 June

B Z6H30R 1L61EA
2022 2021
20224 20214
Depreciation of fixed assets and right-of-use assets BrTEEMEFRAREENESER 153,137,499 68,050,599
Employee salaries and benefit expenses BITENMBEFMNER 95,579,366 93,198,782
Airport and logistic services fee Hi5 R INEERE RIS B 45,163,522 30,123,290
Outsourcing and sub-contracted labour costs BN R B EIREE A 30,431,566 23,091,784
Depreciation of investment properties BREEEMENEER 25,843,636 18,701,163
Repairs and maintenance =g 20,285,371 32,708,208
Utilities KEE 17,439,658 18,210,854
Amortisation of land use rights + Hb {55 PR A 4 5 8,469,655 1,848,003
Handling fees of CAAC Settlement Centre RMEERLFHEE 1,286,417 1,886,367
Travelling expenses = kB 70,256 336,788
Others Hith 57,811,370 58,863,525
455,518,316 347,019,363
For the six months ended 30 June 2022, there is no lease payments H E2022%6A30H L6 AHAM - AR AIER
of short-term leases and low-value leases that the Company directly B ABHEENEHEEMEEERENHE
recognised in profit or loss (For the six months ended 30 June 2021: Nil). X (HZE20219F6 A30H I-61E A #if : £) -
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